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Two Nationwide Plaza Telephone 614 249 2300
Columbus, OH 43215 Fax 614 249 2348

Independent Auditors’ Report on the Financial Statements

The Board of Trustees
Central Ohio Transit Authority
Columbus, Ohio:

We have audited the balance sheets of the Central Ohio Transit Authority (COTA) as of
December 31, 1999 and 1998 and the related statements of revenues, expenses and changes in
equity and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of
COTA’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of COTA as of December 31, 1999 and 1998, and the results of its operations and
its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 1,

2000 on our consideration of COTA’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulation, contracts and grants.

KPMe LP

June 1, 2000



CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Balance Sheets

December 31, 1999 and 1998

Assets 1999 1998
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 774,986 1,632,511
Receivables:
Federal operating assistance 9,718,608 —
State operating assistance 2,427,000 2,673,081
Other 1,368,156 778,571
Inventory of materials and supplies 1,625,782 1,449,447
Other 138,413 453,637
Total 16,052,945 6,987,247
Restricted assets —
Board restricted:
Cash and cash equivalents 22,592,537 12,495,187
Investments — 13,747,802
Accrued interest — 302,756
Total 22,592,537 26,545,745
Restricted for capital grant expenditures:
Cash and cash equivalents — 3,746,819
Federal capital grants receivable 4,111,166 821,269
State capital grants receivable 552,923 34,229
Total 4,664,089 4,602,317
Property and equipment:
Cost 143,390,287 127,400,057
Less accumulated depreciation (77,230,796) (69,273,915)
Total 66,159,491 58,126,142
Total assets $ 109,469,062 96,261,451

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Balance Sheets

December 31, 1999 and 1998

Liabilities and Equity 1999 1998
Current liabilities:
Current portion of capital lease obligations $ 147,843 143,739
Accounts payable 2,833,904 1,239,005
Accrued payroll and fringe benefits 5,136,840 4,647,522
Accrued payroll taxes 620,709 1,315,365
Accrued interest payable 37,543 72,878
Estimated workers' compensation claims 250,000 120,000
Other current liabilities 286,164 370,126
Total 9,313,003 7,908,635
Liabilities payable from restricted assets:
Current portion of bonds payable 1,360,000 1,280,000
Estimated claims payable 212,871 203,276
Capital expenditures payable and other 280,713 82,126
Total 1,853,584 1,565,402
Other liabilities:
Bonds payable, less current portion — 1,360,000
Deferred income — sale of tax leases 19,273 32,121
Capital lease obligation, less current portion 302,733 158,272
Total 322,006 1,550,393
Total liablilites 11,488,593 11,024,430
Contributed capital:
Federal grants 45,272,359 41,905,403
State grants 3,012,158 2,506,517
Donated capital 942,000 —
Total 49,226,517 44,411,920
Retained earnings 48,753,952 40,825,101
Total equity 97,980,469 85,237,021
Total liabilities and equity $ 109,469,062 96,261,451




CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Equity

Years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998

1999 1998
Operating revenues:
Passenger fares for transit service 12,795,123 12,679,572
Special transit fares 384,650 431,504
Charter service revenue 21,507 24,406
Auxiliary transportation revenue 983,160 939,054
Total 14,184,440 14,074,536
Operating expenses other than depreciation:
Labor 28,518,217 26,551,118
Fringe benefits 14,232,678 12,790,407
Materials and supplies 4,310,930 3,854,570
Purchased transportation 3,267,644 3,023,008
Services 5,003,091 2,913,181
Utilities 970,031 892,157
Taxes 635,113 593,828
Leases and rentals 132,498 151,265
Claims and insurance, net of settlements 224,176 98,845
Miscellaneous 1,391,509 1,275,328
Total 58,685,887 52,143,707
Depreciation:
On assets acquired with contributed capital 6,389,725 6,398,665
On assets acquired with authority resources 1,862,157 1,351,168
Total 8,251,882 7,749,833
Total operating expenses 66,937,769 59,893,540

Excess of operating expenses including

depreciation over operating revenues (52,753,329) (45,819,004)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):

Sales tax revenues 39,700,653 36,042,732
Federal operating grants and reimbursements 9,726,749 1,919,920
State operating grants, reimbursements and special fare assistance 3,341,855 3,655,120
Investment income 1,527,817 1,685,714
Interest expense (139,565) (221,275)
Planning study assistance revenues 29,833 54,860
Planning study expense (37,291) (68,575)
Experience refund from the Ohio Bureau of Workers’ Compensation — 2,022,040
Nontransportation and other revenues 142,404 184,955
Total 54,292,455 45,275,491
Net revenues over/(under) expense 1,539,126 (543,513)
(Continued)



CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Equity, Continued

Years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998

Net revenues over/(under) expense

Addback of depreciation expense (on assets acquired with
contributed capital) closed to contributed capital $

Increase in retained earnings
Retained earnings, beginning of year
Retained earnings, end of year
Contributed capital, beginning of year
Capital contributed:
Federal capital grants
State capital grants
Donated capital
Amortization of contributed capital (equal to the depreciation on
assets acquired with contributed capital):
Federal capital grants
State capital grants

Contributed capital, end of year

Total equity, end of year $

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

1999 1998
1,539,126 (543,513)
6,389,725 6,398,665
7,928,851 5,855,152

40,825,101 34,969,949

48,753,952 40,825,101

44,411,920 47,464,262
9,386,291 3,312,094

876,031 34,229

942,000 —
(6,019,335) (6,044,770)

(370,390) (353,895)
49,226,517 44,411,920
97,980,469 85,237,021




CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Statement of Cash Flows

Years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998

Cash flows from operating activities:
Excess of operating expenses including depreciation over
operating revenues
Adjustments to reconcile to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation expense
Federal planning study assistance received
Planning study expenditures
Other nonoperating revenues, net
Change in assets and liabilities:
Other receivables
Inventory
Other assets
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related taxes
Other current liabilities
Estimated claims payable

Total adjustments
Net cash used in operating activities
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Sales taxes received
Federal operating assistance received
State operating and other assistance received
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Federal capital grants received
State capital grants received
Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets
Acquisition and construction of fixed assets
Repayment of bond principal
Interest paid on bonds payable and capital leases
Repayment of capital lease obligations
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from maturities of investments
Interest received from investments
Purchases of investments
Net cash used in investing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Non-cash financing activities:

Equipment acquired under capital lease obligations

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

$

1999

1998

(52,753,329)

(45,819,004)

8,251,882 7,749,833
24,403 51,864
(31,860) (67,275)
121,415 2,144,305
(595,653) 411,705
(176,335) 21,389
308,672 (4,677)
1,594,899 283,597
(205,338) 396,149
(83,962) 11,625
139,595 86,838
9,347,718 11,085,353

(43,405,611)

(34,733,651)

39,700,653 36,042,732
14,209 1,802,279
3,596,077 3,637,128
43,310,939 41,482,139
6,101,824 2,825,230
357,337 —
— 6,129
(14,750,276) (4,122,083)
(1,280,000) (1,200,000)
(174,900) (254,400)
(244,682) (207,453)
(9,990,697) (2,952,577)
13,665,000 8,000,000
1,913,375 1,608,381
— (4,009,118)
15,578,375 5,599,263
5,493,006 9,395,174
17,874,517 8,479,343
23,367,523 17,874,517
300,000 280,000
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CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 1999 and 1998

Organization and Reporting Entity

(@)

®)

Organization

The Central Ohio Transit Authority (COTA or the Authority) is an independent, specialpurpose
political subdivision of the State of Ohio. The Authority was created on February 17, 1971,
pursuant to Sections 306.30 through 306.53 of the Ohio Revised Code for the purpose of providing
public transportation in Central Ohio, primarily Franklin County and surrounding areas. The
Authority commenced operations on January 1, 1974. As a political subdivision, the Authority is
distinct from, and is not an agency of, the State of Ohio or any other local governmental unit.

Under Ohio law, the Authority is authorized to levy a sales and use tax for transit purposes,
including both capltal improvement and operating expenses, in .25% increments up to a maximum
rate of 1.5% if approved by a majority of the electors residing within the territorial boundaries of
the Authority. Such a sales and use tax is in addition to the sale and use taxes levied by the State
of Ohio and Franklin County. On November 7, 1989, the voters of Franklin County approved a
0.25% sales and use tax that expires on February 1, 2000.

The Authority also has the power, under Section 306.40 of the Ohio Revised Code, to levy and
collect both voted (after approval at an election) and unvoted ad valorem taxes on all the taxable
property within the territorial boundaries of the Authority, in order to pay debt service on its bonds

and notes issued in anticipation thereof. Ad valorem taxes were not levied during fiscal years 1999
and 1998.

The Authority is governed by a 13-member Board of Trustees. Members are appointed by the
mayors of COTA’s chartering municipal corporations and by the Franklin County Board of
Commissioners and serve overlapping 3-year terms.

The Authority is not subject to federal or state income taxes.
Reporting Entity

The accompanying financial statements comply with the provisions of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity. This
statement requires that financial statements of the reporting entity include all of the organizations,
activities, functions and component units for which the reporting entity is financially accountable.
Financial accountability is defined as the appointment of a voting majority of the component unit’s
board and either (1) the reporting entity’s ability to impose its will over the component unit, or
(2) the possibility that the component unit will provide a financial benefit to or impose a financial
burden on the reporting entity. COTA does not have financial accountability over any entities.

7 (Continued)



CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 1999 and 1998

The City of Columbus (the City) is a related organization to COTA as the Mayor of the City, with
the approval of City Council, appoints a voting majority of COTA’s Board. However, the financial
statements of COTA are not included within the City’s “Reporting Entity” as the City cannot
impose its will and there is no financial benefit or financial burden relationship between the City
and COTA.

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Basis of Accounting

®)

(©

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting,
whereby revenues and expenses are recognized in the period earned or incurred. All transactions
are accounted for in a single enterprise fund.

Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 20 Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary
Funds and Other Governmental Entities that Use Proprietary Fund Accounting the Authority
follows GASB guidance as applicable to proprietary funds and Financial Accounting Standards
Board Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board Opinions and Accounting
Research Bulletins issued on or before November 30, 1989 that do not conflict with or contradict
GASB pronouncements.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Authority considers all highly liquid investments
(including restricted assets) with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash
equivalents.

Grants and Assistance

The federal government, through the Federal Transit Administration (FTA), and the Ohio
Department of Transportation (ODOT) provide financial assistance and make grants directly to
the Authority for operations and the acquisition of property and equipment. Grants for operating
assistance are recorded as revenues during the entitlement period to which the grants apply.

Grants for the acquisition of property and equipment are credited to contributed capital as the
related qualified expenditures are incurred. Any grant cash received prior to the incurrence of
related qualified expenditures is deferred. Depreciation on fixed assets resulting from capital
grants is allocated to contributed capital using the straight-line method over the same lives as
described for the related property and equipment in note 2(g).

8 (Continued)
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CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 1999 and 1998

Investments

Prior to January 1, 1998, investments were carried at cost and were adjusted for the amortizations
of premiums and accretions of discount, over the lives of the related securities, which were
recognized as adjustments to investment income.

Effective January 1, 1998, the Authority adopted GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and External Investment Pools. Pursuant to
Statement No. 31, at December 31, 1998, investments are carried at fair value, which is based on
quoted market prices. As of December 31, 1999, StarOhio was the only investment held by the
Authority.

Inventory of Materials and Supplies

Inventory items are stated at average cost. Inventory generally consists of maintenance parts and
supplies for transportation equipment.

Restricted Assets

Restricted assets consist of monies and other resources which are restricted by the Authority’s
Board of Trustees or capital grants for specified purposes. These restrictions are described below:

Board Restricted Assets — These assets are restricted for the payment of claims under the
Authority’s self-insurance program, for future capital expenditures, and current portion of
bonds payable.

Restricted for Capital Grant Expenditures — These assets are restricted under the
Authority’s capital grants for certain capital projects. The Authority also includes in restricted
capital grant assets amounts relating to its local share requirements for active capital grants.

Property and Depreciation
Property and equipment are stated at historical cost and include expenditures which substantially
increase the useful lives of existing assets. Routine maintenance and repairs are expensed as

icurred.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
respective assets, as follows:

Description Years
Land and leasehold improvements 5-20
Buildings and improvements 20-40
Revenue vehicles 12
Transit shelters and terminals 5-40
Other equipment 3-10

9 (Continued)
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CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 1999 and 1998

Assets acquired with capital grants are included in property and equipment and depreciation on
those assets is included in the statements of revenues and expenses.

Estimated Claims Payable

The Authority has a self-insurance program for public liability, personal injury, property damage
and, as of July 1, 1998, worker’s compensation (see note 9). Claims are accrued in the year the
expenses are incurred, based upon estimates of the claim liabilities made by management and the
legal counsel of the Authority. Also provided for are estimates of claims incurred during the year
but not yet reported. These estimates are based on past experience and current outstanding
claims. An actuary was not used in determination of these liabilities.

Sale of Tax Leases

Cash received from the sale of tax leases has been deferred and is recognized as income on the
straight-line basis over the lives of the related assets. To take advantage of certain tax benefits
available under section 168(F)(8) of the Internal Revenue Code, prior to December 31, 1987, the
Authority entered into four sale-and-leaseback agreements with third parties. These third parties
purchased the rights to the local share portion of certain buses from COTA for cash consideration
and are leasing the buses back to the Authority. Two such agreements expired in 1996, 1997 and
1998. The other leaseback agreement expires in 2001.

Compensated Absences
The Authority accrues vacation and sick pay benefits as earned by its employees.
Passenger Fares

Passenger fares are recorded as revenue at the time services are performed and revenues pass
through the fare box.

Budgetary Accounting and Control

The Authority’s annual budget is prepared on the accrual basis of accounting as permitted by law.
The Authority maintains budgetary control by not permitting total expenditures to exceed total
appropriations without approval of the Board of Trustees.

Use of Estimates

The accounting and reporting policies of COTA conform to generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP). The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

10 (Continued)
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CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 1999 and 1998

(n) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement Nos. 33 and 34

This report does not incorporate GASB Statement Nos. 33 and 34, Recipient Reporting for
Certain Shared Nonexchange Revenues and Basic Financial Statements and Management
Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments, respectively. The Authority will
adopt and implement these GASB Statements at the required time. The Authority has not
completed the process of evaluating the impact of adopting these statements, and therefore is
unable to disclose the impact that adapting these statements will have on its financial position and
results of operations when such statements are implemented.

Cash and Investments

The investment and deposit of Authority monies is governed by the provisions of the Ohio Revised
Code. In accordance with these statutes, only financial institutions located in Ohio are eligible to hold
public deposits. The statutes also permit the Authority to invest its monies in certificates of deposit,
savings accounts, money market accounts, the State Treasurer’s investment pool (STAR Ohio), and
obligations of the United States government or certain agencies thereof. The Authority may also enter
into repurchase agreements with any eligible depository for a period not exceeding 30 days.

STAR Ohio is an investment pool managed by the State Treasurer’s Office which allows governments
within the State to pool their funds for investment purposes. STAR Ohio is not registered with the
Securities Exchange commission as an investment company, but does operate in a manner similar to
Rule 2a7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940. Investments in STAR Ohio are valued at STAR
Ohio’s share price which is the price the investment could be sold for on December 31, 1999.

Public depositories must give security for all public funds on deposit. These institutions may either
specifically collateralize individual accounts in addition to amounts insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FDIC), or may pledge a pool of government securities valued at least 110% of
the total value of public monies on deposit at the institution. Repurchase agreements must be secured
by the specific government securities upon which the repurchase agreements are based. These
securities must be obligations of or guaranteed by the United States and mature or be redeemable
within 5 years of the date of the related repurchase agreement. State law does not require security for
public deposits and investments to be maintained in the Authority’s name.

During 1999 and 1998, the Authority complied with the provisions of these statutes.

(a) Deposits With Financial Institutions
At December 31, 1999, the carrying amount of the Authority’s deposits with financial institutions
was $45,144 and the bank balance was $109,050. In addition, the Authority had $6,130 of cash on

hand. Of the bank balance, all $109,050 was insured by Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
(Category 1 as defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board).

11 (Continued)
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CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 1999 and 1998

At December 31, 1998, the carrying amount of the Authority’s deposits with financial institutions
was $1,046,517 and the bank balance was $1,059,407. In addition, the Authority had $6,200 of
cash on hand. Of the bank balance, $200,000 was insured by Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (Category 1 as defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board). The
remaining bank balance cash deposits were uninsured and uncollateralized and were held in the
name of COTA’s pledging financial institution, as required by the Ohio Revised Code (Category
3).

Investments and Other Deposits

The Authority’s investments are detailed below and categorized in accordance with the criteria
established by the GASB to give an indication of the level of risk assumed as of December 31,
1999 and 1998. Category 1 includes investments that are insured or registered or for which the
securities are held by the Authority or its agent in the Authority’s name. Category 2 includes
investments that are uninsured and unregistered for which the securities are held by the
counterparty’s trust department or agent in the Authority’s name. Category 3 includes uninsured
and unregistered investments for which securities are held by the counterparty or by its trust
department or agent but not in the Authority’s name. Deposits and equities in pools of funds
managed by other governmental units are not categorized.

As of December 31, 1999, the Authority held equity of $23,316,249 in STAROhio, which is not
required to be categorized due to its nature.

As of December 31, 1998:

Category Fair
Description 1 2 3 Value
U.S. Treasury Notes and federal
agency obligations $ — — 13,747,802 $ 13,747,802
Equity in the state treasurer’s
Investment pool (STAROhio) 16,821,800
$ 30,569,602

12 (Continued)



CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 1999 and 1998

(4) Board Restricted Assets
Board restricted assets comprise of the following:

December 31,

1999 1998
Restricted for self-insurance:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 11,411,946 1,054,596
Investments — 9,720,927
Accrued interest — 290,222
Total 11,411,946 11,065,745
Restricted for capital expenditures:
Cash and cash equivalents 9,820,591 10,160,591
Investments — 4,026,875
Accrued interest — 12,534
Total 9,820,591 14,200,000
Restricted for bond retirement —
Cash and cash equivalents 1,360,000 1,280,000
Total board restricted $ 22,592,537 26,545,745

(5) Property and Equipment
The cost of property and equipment is comprised of the following:

December 31,

1999 1998
Land $ 5168315 4,190,514
Land and leasehold improvements 8,862,408 8,085,321
Buildings and improvements 27,730,695 27,200,087
Revenue vehicles 67,961,219 61,127,627
Transit shelters and terminals 6,509,746 6,399,050
Other equipment 24,894,029 19,596,464
Construction in progress 2,263,875 200,994

§ 143,390,287 127,400,057

The construction in progress includes funds committed to the purchase of buses and transit vehicles
funded primarily through federal and state capital assistance.

13 (Continued)
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CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 1999 and 1998

Leases

COTA leases certain property and office equipment under capital and operating leases. Future
minimum payments, by year, and in the aggregate, under these leases with initial or remaining terms of
one year or more, consisted of the following at December 31, 1999:

Commitments under

Capital Operatin
g
lease leases
2000 $ 173,258 29,787
2001 173,258 27,871
2002 149,373 15,838
2003 — 5,622
2004 — —
Total minimum lease payments 495889 $ 37,004
Less amount representing interest (45,313)
Present value of minimum lease payments under capitalized lease § 450,576

The interest rate for the capital lease is approximately 6.6% at December 31, 1999. Rental expense for
all operating leases was approximately $92,000 in 1999 and $151,000 in 1998.

Bonds Payable

Bonds payable consist of capital improvement bonds issued to acquire, construct, improve, replace,
extend and enlarge transit facilities within the territorial boundaries of the Authority. The bonds are
general obligations of the Authority and bear interest at a weighted average annual rate of
approximately 6.6%.

The annual requirements to pay principal and interest on the bonds outstanding at December 31, 1999
are as follows:

Year Principal Interest Total

2000 $ 1,360,000 90,100 1,450,100

14 (Continued)
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CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 1999 and 1998

Grants, Reimbursements and Special Fare Assistance

Grants, reimbursements and special fare assistance included in the statements of revenues and
expenses for the years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998 consist of the following:

1999 1998
Federal:
FTA Operating Assistance $ 9,718,608 373,955
FTA Reimbursement of Bus Overhaul Expenses — 1,505,299
City of Newark—Pass-Through Operating Assistance from FTA 8,140 40,666
Total $ 9,726,749 1,919,920
State:
ODOT Operating Assistance $ 2,429,652 2,743,278
ODOT Elderly and Disabled Fare Assistance 291,096 307,276
ODOT Fuel Tax Reimbursement 586,710 553,869
ODOT “Paving-the-Way” Reimbursement 34,398 50,697
Total $ 3,341,855 3,655,120
Risk Management

COTA 1is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft or destruction of assets, injuries to
employees and natural disasters.

COTA is self-insured for all public liability, personal injury and property damage claims. The estimated
liability for such claims of $212,876 at December 31, 1999 and $203,276 at December 31, 1998 are
included in liabilities payable from restricted assets in the accompanying balance sheets. At
December 31, 1999 and 1998, $11,411,946 and $11,065,745, respectively, has been restricted by the
Board of Trustees to fund the self-insurance program. Such funds are included in board-restricted
assets in the December 31, 1999 and 1998 balance sheets.

Prior to June 30, 1998, COTA was insured through the State of Ohio Bureau of Workers’
Compensation (BWC) for injuries to its employees. On July 1, 1998, the Authority entered into an
agreement with the BWC to become self-insured for claims pertaining to work-related injuries to
Authority employees occurring on a after that date. The BWC agreed to continue to administer and
pay all compensation claims arising on or before June 30, 1998. The estimated liability for all such
claims occurring since July 1, 1998 is $250,000 at December 31, 1999 and is included as a liability in the
accompanying balance sheet.

The general claims liability was calculated by establishing reserves on a case by case basis after

analysis by in-house counsel and outside attorneys. The works compensation liability was determined
by analyzing claim lag information provided by COTA third party administrators.

15 (Continued)
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CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 1999 and 1998

A summary of changes in self-insurance claims liability for the years ended December 31, 1999 and
1998 follows:

General Workers’

liability Compensation
Claims liability at December 31, 1997 $ 236,438 —
Incurred claims, net of favorable settlements 55,051 144,585
Claims paid (88,213) (24,585)
Claims liability at December 31, 1998 203,276 120,000
Incurred claims, net of favorable settlements 194,666 145,462
Claims paid (185,071) (15,462)
Claims liability at December 31, 1999 $ 212,871 250,000

Defined Benefit Pension Plan

(a) Plan Description

®)

COTA contributes to the Public Employees Retirement System of Ohio (PERS), a cost sharing,
multiple -employer defined benefit pension plan. PERS provides retirement and disability benefits,
annual cost of living adjustments and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Chapter
145 of the Ohio Revised Code (ORC) assigns the authority to etablish and amend benefit
provisions to the PERS Board of Trustees. PERS issues a publicly available financial report that
includes the financial statements and required supplementary information. That report may be
obtained by writing to Public Employees Retirement System, 277 East Town Street, Columbus,
Ohio, 43215 or by calling 614-266-2085 or 1-800-222-PERS (7377).

Funding Policy

Plan members are required to contribute 8.5% of their annual covered salary and COTA is
required to contribute an actuarially determined rate. The current rate is 13.55% of annual
covered payroll. The contribution requirements of plan members and COTA are established and
may be amended by PERS Board of Trustees. COTA’s contributions to PERS for the years
ending December 31, 1999, 1998, and 1997 were approximately $4,400,000, $4,125,000, and
$3,845,000, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year.

16 (Continued)
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Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 1999 and 1998

(c) Other Postemployment Benefits

PERS also provides postemployment health care coverage to age and service retirees with 10 or
more years of qualifying Ohio service credit and to primary survivor recipients of such restraints.
Health care coverage for disability recipients is available. The health care coverage provided by
the retirement system is considered an Other Postemployment Benefit as described in GASB
Statement No. 12. As required by state statute, a portion of each employer’s contribution to PERS
is set aside for funding of the postemployment health care. The ORC provides statutory authority
for employer contributions to be used for the funding of postemployment health care. COTA’s
contributions actually made to fund postemployment benefits was $1,363,800 in 1999 and
$1,279,000 in 1998.

Other postemployment benefits (OPEB) are financed through employer contributions and
investment earnings thereon (i.e. pay as you go). The contributions allocated to retiree health care
and Medicare, along with investment income on allocated assets and periodic adjustments in health
care provisions are expected to be sufficient to sustain the program indefinitely.

Expenditures for OPEB for PERS as a whole during 1999 were $523,599,349. As of
December 31, 1999, the unaudited estimated net assets available for future OPEB payments were
$9,870,285.641. The number of benefit recipients eligible for OPEB at December 31, 1999 was
118,062.

During 1997, PERS adopted a new calculation method for determining employer contributions
applied to OPEB. Under the new method, effective January 1, 1998, employer contributions, equal
to 4.2% of member covered payroll, are used to fund health care expenses. Under the prior
method, accrued liabilities and normal cost rates were determined for retiree health care
coverage.

(11) Contingent Liabilities
(a) Litigation

It is the Authority’s policy to act as self-insurer for certain insurable risks consisting primarily of
public liability and property damage. At December 31, 1999, COTA has been named in various
public liability and property damage claims and suits, some of which seek significant damages. The
ultimate outcome of the claims and suits cannot be determined; however, it is the opinion of
management that any resulting liability to the Authority in excess of that provided for in the
accompanying balance sheet will not have a material adverse effect on the Authority’s financial
position.

17 (Continued)
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(b) Federal and State Grants

Under the terms of the Authority’s various grants, periodic audits are required where certain costs
could be questioned as not being an eligible expenditure under the terms of the grants. At
December 31, 1999, there were no material questioned costs that had not been resolved with
appropriate federal and state agencies. Questioned costs could still be identified during audits to be
conducted in the future. In the opinion of COTA’s management, no material grant expenditures
will be disallowed.
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Two Nationwide Plaza Telephone 614 249 2300
Columbus, OH 43215 Fax 614 249 2348

Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance and on Internal Control
Over Financial Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards

Board of Trustees

Central Ohio Transit Authority:
and

The Honorable Jim Petro

Auditor of State:

We have audited the financial statements of the Central Ohio Transit Authority (COTA) as of and
for the year ended December 31, 1999, and have issued our report thereon dated June 1, 2000. We
conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether COTA’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect
on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no mstances of noncompliance that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered COTA’s internal control over financial
reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
the financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting.
However, we noted a certain matter involving internal control over financial eporting and its
operation that we consider to be a reportable condition. Reportable conditions involve matters
coming to our attention relating to significant deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal
control over financial reporting that, n our judgement, could adversely affect COTA’s ability to
record, process, summarize, and report financial data consistent with the assertions of management
in the financial statements. A reportable condition is described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs as item 99-2.

A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal
control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts
that would be nmterial in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be
detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions. Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily
disclose all reportable conditions that are also considered to be material weaknesses. However, we
believe that the reportable condition described above is not a material weakness.



We noted other matters involving the internal control over financial reporting that we have reported
to management of COTA in a separate letter dated June 1, 2000.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the board and management of COTA,

the Ohio Auditor of State, and the Federal Transit Administration and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

KPMe LP

June 1, 2000



Two Nationwide Plaza Telephone 614 249 2300
Columbus, OH 43215 Fax 614 249 2348

Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance with Requirements
Applicable to Each Major Program, Internal Control Over
Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Board of Trustees

Central Ohio Transit Authority:
and

The Honorable Jim Petro

Auditor of State:

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the Central Ohio Transit Authority (COTA) with the types of
compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB)

Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs
for the year ended December 31, 1999. COTA’s major federal programs are identified in the
summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.
Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its
major federal programs is the responsibility of COTA’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on COTA’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance with generally accepted auditing standards; the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular
A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards
and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about COTA’s compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination on COTA’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, COTA complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that
are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 1999.
However, the results of our auditing procedures disclosed one instance of non-compliance with
those requirements, which is required to be reported in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and
which is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 99-1.



Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of COTA is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered COTA’s internal control over
compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program n order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB
Circular A-133.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters
in the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to
a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants that would be material in relation to a major federal program being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over compliance and its
operation that we consider to be material weaknesses.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

We have audited the financial statements of COTA as of and for the year ended December 31,
1999, and have issued our report thereon dated June 1, 2000. Our audit was performed for the
purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements taken as a whole. The accompanying
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the aidit of the financial
statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial
statements taken as a whole.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the board and management of COTA,

the Auditor of the State of Ohio and the Federal Transit Administration and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

KPMe LLP

June 1, 2000
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1

(2)

3)

(C))

CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures
of Federal Awards

Year ended December 31, 1999

General

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activity of all federal
financial assistance programs of COTA. COTA’s reporting entity is defined in note 1 to COTA’s
financial statements.

Basis of Accounting

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented using the accrual basis of
accounting.

Relationship of Federal Financial Reports

Amounts reported in the accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards agree with the
amounts reported in the related federal financial reports.

Subrecipients
COTA had one subrecipient, the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (MORPC), in the current

year. COTA paid MORPC $37,291 in the current year through CFDA# 20.500, grant number OH—03—
0149.



CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the year ended December 31, 1999

(1) Summary of Auditor’s Results

(2)
(b)

(c)
(d)
(e)
®

)
(h)

@

The type of report issued on the basic financial statements:

Reportable conditions in internal control were disclosed by the audit of
the financial statements:

Material weaknesses:

Noncompliance which is material to the financial statements:
Reportable conditions in internal control over major programs:
The type of report issued on compliance for major programs:

Any audit findings which are required to be reported under Section
.510(a) of OMB Circular A-133:

Major programs: Federal Transit Cluster (CFDA #20.507 and 20.500)

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B
programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee under Section .530 of OMB Circular
A-133:

Unqualified opinion

See 99-2
None
None

None reported

Unqualified opinion

See 99-1

$300,000

Yes
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1)

2)

CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

For the year ended December 31, 1999

Findings Relating to the General Purpose Financial Statements Reported in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards:

(99-2) Reportable Condition over Financial Reporting

COTA experienced difficulties and is still experiencing difficulties in the following areas:

1) Bank account reconciliations for the months of October through December 1999 were not
performed in a timely manner nor prior to the commencement of our audit work in February
2000. As of the date of this letter bank reconciliations were still incomplete for the months of
January through May 2000.

2) Federal reporting for grant reimbursements have been behind. The total year end
receivable balance for grants was in excess of $13 million.

The aforementioned difficulties demonstrated a lack of monitoring controls over the financial
accounting and reporting processes.

COTA Response:

During 1999, COTA experienced employee turnover due to internal restructuring. The Authority
has recently hired a new chief financial officer, and is in the process of reviewing it’s internal
operating practices and procedures to ensure compliance with sound accounting principles is
maintained. Mitigating controls and circumstances related to each of the specific concerns
identified above are discussed below.

Bank Account Reconciliations — We concur with this concern, however compensating controls
were utilized to minimize the potential for errors and any material impact on the financial
statements. COTA utilizes 3 bank accounts, including 2 zero balance (clearing) accounts for the
distribution of accounts payable and payroll checks. The 2 clearing accounts comprise the vast
majority disbursement transactions, and are funded by single “lump sum” distributions from the
master account based on control totals. All three accounts were reconciled to zero as of
December 31, 1999. In addition, cash handling functions are segregated between three individuals
to ensure appropriate checks and balances are maintained.

Federal Reporting for Grant Reimbursements — $9.7 million of the $13 million receivable is for
COTA’s TEA-21 funds. 1999 was the first year of the Federal Government’s new
Transportation Equity Act of the 21* Century (TEA-21). COTA applied for these funds in early
February 1999, and was notified of our award in late April. The funds however, were not
available for “drawdown” through the Federal system until mid to late August. COTA filed for



CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

For the year ended December 31, 1999

these funds in November, and received payment of $9.6 million in early January 2000 with the
balance paid in February. The remaining $3.3 million is related to the receipt of federal funds
administered through the Ohio Department of Transportation. These funds include State
participation on major facility projects. Receipt of these funds from the State of Ohio has been
delayed due to processing issues between the State and the Federal Government, over which
COTA has no control.

(3) Findings and Questioned Costs Relating to Federal Awards:

(99-1) Finding over Inventory of Capital Assets: Federal Transit Administration Grants

Criteria:

Recipients of Federal Funding from the Federal Transit Administration program are required to
perform physical inventories of capital assets every two years.

Condition:

COTA failed to complete a physical asset inventory in the current year. The most recent physical
asset inventory was performed in 1997.

Questioned Costs:

None

Effect:

The ability of COTA to properly update asset records has been diminished.
Cause:

Due to recent turnover, and current lack of understanding of Federal regulations by current
staffing, the completion of the physical asset inventory was overlooked in the current year.

Recommendation:

We recommend COTA revisit the requirements associated over the Federal awards to ensure
they are complying with all necessary requirements.

COTA Response:
We concur with this recommendation. This concern was identified in a triennial review conducted

on behalf of the Federal Transit Administration. COTA is working with the regulatory agency and
has submitted a plan to have this inventory completed by August 31.
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LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL

Central Ohio Transit Aothority
1600 McKinley Avenue

Columbus, OH 43222-1093

Phone: 614-275-5800

Fax: 614.275-5933

Web Site: www.cota.com

Board of Trustees

E. James Hopple, Chair
Mary T. “Tommie" Williams, Vice Chair

Margery Amorose

June 1, 2000

William A. Anthony, Jr,

Janet G. Ashe

Lou J. Briggs

David €. Hefzler
William 6. Parter 1}
Jumes W. Rorey
Ban M. Reichard, Jr.
Yvanne E. Simon
Craig A. Thomas

President /CEQ
Ronald E. Barnes

Board of Trustees of the

Central Ohio Transit Authority
and

Residents of Central Ohio:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the Central Ohio Transit Authority
(the Authority) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1999 is hereby respectfully submitted.
This CAFR was prepared by the Finance Division and represents the Authority’s
commitment to provide accurate, concise and high quality financial information to its Board
of Trustees and interested parties or residents in its service area.

The presentation of this CAFR contains financial statements and statistical data which
provide full disclosure of all the material financial operations of the Authority. The financial
statements, supplemental schedule, statistical information and all data contained herein are
the representations of the Authority’s management. The Authority’s management bears the
responsibility for the accuracy, completeness and fairness of this CAFR presentation.

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA)
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Central
Ohio Transit Authority for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 1998. The Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious national award
recognizing conformance with the highest standards for preparation of state and local
governiment financial reports.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievernent, a government unit must publish an
easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report, whose
contents conform to program standards. Such CAFR must satisfy both generally accepted
accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. The Central Ohio
Transit Authority has received a Certificate of Achievernent for the last ten consecutive years
(fiscal years ended 1989 - 1998). The Authority believes its curreni CAFR continues to
conform to the Certificate of Achievement program requirements, and the Authority is
submitting it to the GFOA.

(corniiinrured)
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This CAFR is divided into the following three sections:

Introductory Section - contains this letter of transmittal, a Table of Organization, a listing of the
members of the Board of Trustees and Senior Management, and a reproduction of the Certificate of
Achievement awarded to the Authority by the GFOA for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1998.

Financial Section - includes the Independent Auditors' Report, the financial statements (with related
footnotes) for the fiscal years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998, and a supplemental schedule
disclosing actual revenues, expenses and changes in equity for the fiscal year ended December 31,
1999, compared to budgeted amounts.

Statistical Section - provides financial, economic and demnographic information which is useful for
indicating trends for comparative fiscal periods.

REPORTING ENTITY

General

The Authority's reporting entity has been defined in accordance with Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement Number 14, The financial statements contained within this
CAFR include all of the organizations, activities, functions and component units for which the
Authority is financially accountable. Financial accountability is defined as the appointment of a
voting majority of the component unit's board and either 1) the reporting entity's ability to impose its
will over the component unit or 2) the possibility that the component unit will provide a financial
benefit to or impose a financial burden on the reporting entity. On this basis, the Authority does not
have financial accountability over any other entity, and no governmental units other than the
Authority itself are included in the reporting entity. Furthermore, the Authority is not included as a
component unit in the reporting entity of any other governmental unit's financial statements. A
complete discussion of the Authority's reporting entity is included in footnote 1 to the financial
statementis.

The Central Ohio Transit Authority is an independent political subdivision of the State of Ohio with
its own taxing power. The Authority is not dependent upon appropriations from Franklin County,
the City of Columbus, or any other political subdivision for local funding. The Authority is
empowered by the Ohio Revised Code to issue general obligation debt secured by its own taxing
power.

The Authority was created by an agreement executed on February 17, 1971, with Franklin County
and the cities of Bexley, Columbus, Gahanna, Grandview Heights, Grove City, Hilliard,
Reynoldsburg, Upper Arlington, Westerville, Whitehall and Worthington. The Authority's territorial
boundaries are conterminous with Franklin County, except for an insignificant portion of the
Authority's territory which extends into adjacent Delaware, Fairfield and Licking Counties.

(continued )
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Commencement of Operations

A purchase agreement was executed on June 29, 1973, providing terms for the transfer of the
properties, rights and obligations of the Columbus Transit Company (a now-defunct subsidiary of the
American Electric Power Company) to the Authority. An interim operating agreement permitted the
Columbus Transit Company to continue to provide transit services until December 31, 1973. The
Authority commenced operations on January 1, 1974.

Facilities

1600 McKinley Avenue was constructed in 1980 and is the site of the Authority's administration
headquarters. This facility also houses both heavy (major) and light (routine) bus maintenance
operations, and has indoor storage capacity for 240 buses. .

1333 Fields Avenue opened in September 1984 and provides indoor storage for 200 buses and light
maintenance work areas. It features advanced technology in the areas of ventilation, energy
conservation and maintenance. The radio control room is also housed at this facility.

177 South High Street in downtown Columbus opened in 1988 and houses the Customer Service
Center and the Customer Information Center. The Customer Service Center is the main sales outlet
for passes and tickets and is the location where passengers are photographed for Senior Discount
Cards, Key Cards and ADA Cards. The Customer Information Center provides route information
through the distribution of published maps and timetabies, and maintains a staff of service
representatives (from 6:00 a.m., to 8:00 p.m. weekdays and 8:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. weekends) to assist
customer queries on the Authority's telephone information line (228-1776).

North Terminal is located on Spring Street between High and Front Streets in downtown
Columbus. This terminal has six bays for express routes, and presently twelve express routes use the
terminal to serve passengers in the north downtown area.

City Center Terminal is a 41,000 square foot facility which was completed and opened for service
in November 1989. The terminal is located in the downtown City Center Parking Garage between
Rich and Main Streets. Elevators and escalators provide pedestrian and disabled access to the
terminal from all floors in the City Center Mall. Presently twenty-one express routes use the
terminal.

Linden Transit Terminal is a 20,500 square foot facility located at the comer of Cleveland and 11"
avenues that was opened for service in October 1999, The transit center houses a medical center, a
daycare center, and a bank, as well as other amenities and will be the focal point for expanded COTA
services to be added in 2000. -

{(continued)
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Services
The Central Ohio Transit Authority's vision statement is:

The Central Ohio Transit Authority aspires to be the transit system for a great
community of the 21" century, with convenient, affordable and user friendly
mobility for every resident and visitor.

This staternent is the focus of all operations and support functions.

The Authority provides all public transportation services within Franklin County, as well as the
portions of Delaware, Fairfield and Licking Counties that are included within the municipal
corporation limits of Columbus, Westerville and Reynoldsburg. This service includes 66 fixed bus
routes which are comprised of 24 local routes (including 3 link routes), 12 cross-town routes, 30
express routes. The span of service provided on these fixed routes is from 4:30 a.m. to 1:15 a.m. on
weekdays, 5:00 a.m. to 2:45 a.m. on Saturdays, and 6:30 a.m. to 11:15 p.m. on Sundays and
holidays. The Authority estimates that it will provide approximately 849,000 vehicle hours of fixed
route bus service in 2000 which will result in approximately 11,847,000 vehicle miles of operation.

In addition, the Authority provides demand-responsive transportation to the elderly and disabled
through its Senior Citizens on the Town (SCOT) program and Project Mainstream, respectively. The
Authority projects that in 2000, it will provide approximately 1,695 vehicle hours and 23,645 vehicle
miles of SCOT service, and 100,036 vehicle hours and 1,750,627 vehicle miles of Project
Mainstream (door-to-door, on-demand) service with wheelchair lift-equipped minibuses.

Management - Board of Trustees

The Authority is managed by a Board of Trustees (the "Board") which is vested by Ohio law with the
powers necessary to manage the Authority. The legislation and agreements establishing the
Authority provide for a thirteen-member Board serving overlapping three-year terms. Board
membership is apportioned as follows: City of Columbus, seven members; Franklin County, two
members; and one member each from the following groups of municipal corporations: Group A,
Upper Arlington and Grandview Heights; Group B, Worthington, Gahanna and Westerville; Group
C, Whitehall and Bexley; and Group D, Grove City, Reynoldsburg and Hilliard. When one Board
member represents several cities, the appointments are made on a rotational basis. Members are
appointed by the mayor of the appropriate municipal corporation with the consent of its city council
or, in the case of Franklin County, are appointed by the Board of County Commissioners.

Administration

The administration of the Authority, subject to the policies and supervision of the Board of Trustees,
is directed by the President / CEO who is appointed by the Board. The senior administrative
personnel are selected by the President. A Table of Organization depicting the key functional
responsibilities is shown on Page 21 of this Introductory Section.
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ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

Franklin County (the Authority's primary service area) is located in the central part of Ohio, and the
City of Columbus (the capital of the state) is located within its boundaries. The Columbus
Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA) consists of seven counties: Delaware, Fairfield, Franklin,
Licking, Madison, Pickaway and Union. Based on 1995 estimates from the U. S. Census Bureau,
this combined area's population is 1,474,040, with Franklin County's population of 1,011,019
making it the MSA's largest county in terms of population.

Franklin County is served by diverse transportation facilities. Interstate Highway [-270 forms an
outerbelt surrounding Columbus; Interstate Highways 1-70 and I-71 intersect in the center of the
county. Four U. 8. highways and thirteen state highways are also located in the county. An
estimated 130 trucklines serve the MSA. Major airports include Port Columbus International and
Rickenbacker Port Authority (an air-freight/cargo facility converted from a former Air Force base).
Port Columbus proceeded with plans to extend a second runway to enhance the airport's desirability
as a regional hub. Two small municipal airports also serve general and light aviation.

Franklin County has experienced rapid growth in recent years. Construction of a massive
retail/entertainment complex at Easton on the northeast side was completed in 1999. Further
commercial and office development is continuing in western Columbus (Mill Run), northern
Columbus (Polaris) and southeast Franklin County (Rickenbacker). This new development will only
reinforce the current trend of further economic growth around the outer edges of the region instead of
the central core.

Population

Population in the Authority's service area since 1960 has been as follows:

Franklin
Year Columbus County
1960 471,316 682,923
1970 540,025 833,249
1980 565,032 869,126
1990 632,910 961,437

Source: U, S. Bureau of the Census
Employment

The following table shows average employment in Franklin County, and comparative unemployment
statistics for Franklin County, the State of Ohio and the United States for the last five years.

(continued)
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Average Average
Unemployment Unemplovment Rate

in Franklin Franklin
Year County County Ohio u.s.
1995 549,200 3.0% 4.8% 5.6%
1996 552,900 2.9 4.9 54
1997 564,900 2.7 4.6 4.9
1998 567,100 2.5 4.3 4.5
1999 578,400 2.5 4.3 4.2

Source: Ohio Bureau of Employment Services

Housing and Building Permits

According to U. S. Bureau of Census figures, the median value in 1990 (the most recent data
available) of owner-occupied homes in Franklin County was $73,800, compared with $63,500 for
urban housing in Ohio and $79,100 in the United States. Between 1980 and 1990, the number of
housing units in Franklin County increased 16.8%, from 347,230 to 405,418.

Economic Qutlook

Franklin County has continued to strengthen its position as a regional economic center, as Columbus
is the most populous city in Ohio and is the only major municipality in the state still experiencing
population growth. This is attributable to Columbus' aggressive annexation policies, a pro-growth
economic emphasis in city government and new job creation that has exceeded labor force growth.
The local economy has also undergone significant diversification, with new job creation continuing
to shift to non-manufacturing areas of employment. Franklin County's sizable institutional
component, stemming from the presence of Ohio's capital and The Ohio State University, lends
considerable stability to the local economy. The overall countywide assessed property valuation has
continued to increase, as a result of ongoing residential, office and retail development in the suburbs.
This trend is expected to continue into the future, with the MSA population projected to exceed 1.8
million by the year 2010.

MAJOR INITIATIVES

The year 1999 brought several ““firsts” to COTA including the passage of COTA’s first permanent
sales tax levy; the opening of COTA’s first transit center; and the introduction of COTA’s first low-
floor buses. It was also a commemorative year with the celebration of COTA’s 25 anniversary and
the 10™ anniversary of COTA’s City Center Terminal.

(continued )
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A Look at 1999

25" Anniversary

COTA celebrated 25 years of providing transportation services in Central Chio. A special illustrated
25" anniversary bus was unveiled to mark the milestone. This silver anniversary bus, bearing the 25%
anniversary Jogo, traveled throughout Franklin County providing free service.

OSU

In January, students at The Ohio State University overwhelmingly voted to renew the COTA GO
BUS! program. The referendum vote was a condition of the original agreement in 1997, giving
students an opportunity to decide whether or not to continue the partnership between COTA and
OSU. A total of 7,931 students voted with a 90 percent yes vote ~ the largest voter turnout in the
history of OSU for any type of election.

The yes vote allows OSU students to continue utilizing alil COTA service on an unlimited basis by
showing their Buck ID Card. Students pay just $9 per quarter to participate.

CCAD Partnership

In an effort to continue building relationships throughout the community, COTA began a new
partnership with the Columbus College of Art & Design (CCAD) in the fall. Like the OSU GO BUS!
program, each CCAD student pays a nominal fee each semester to ride on COTA any time.

Linden Transit Center

October marked a major achievement as COTA opened its first transit center. The Linden Transit
Center, located at the corner of Cleveland and 1 1™ avenues, anchors the Four Corners development
project in the Linden area. The 20,500 square foot transit center houses a medical clinic, day care
center, and bank along with other amenities. The center will be the focal point for additional COTA
service to come on line in 2000.

New Buses

Twenty-eight, low-floor NOV A buses were introduced to the COTA fleet in 1999, The buses feature
a new sleek design with larger windows and more comfort and visibility for COTA passengers. The
new low-floor design means no steps for passengers to negotiate when entering or exiting the bus, a
wider aisle, and more headroom inside the bus.

{continued)
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City Center Terminal

COTA celebrated the 10™ anniversary of its City Center Terminal in November. The facility opened
in 1989 as a convenient location for riders to board express buses. Today 21 routes and 120 buses
operate weekdays out of the terminal taking about 1,000 people a day to and from locations all over
Franklin County.

Permanent Funding

In November 1999, Franklin County voters approved the first permanent sales tax ever to fund
COTA. Two sales tax issues were placed on the ballot. The first was a ' percent permanent sales
tax to renew COTA’s 10-year sales tax, and the second was an additional ' percent 10-year sales tax
to help fund expanded bus service and commuter rail. Voters approved the Y percent permanent tax
levy. The additional % percent tax levy for expanded bus service and commuter rail failed.

This permanent funding will help COTA secure more federal funding and provide the stability
needed to make ongoing service improvements. While the second levy for expanded bus service and
the introduction of rail service failed, COTA 1is taking aggressive steps to implement major service
improvements when funding becomes available,

Focus 005

COTA developed a five-year strategic plan called Focus 005. Seven strategic goals serve as the
foundation for the plan:

I. Economic — COTA’s number one goal is to enhance the economy of Central Ohio by
using resources wisely, responding to community needs, and improving service.

2. Environmental - COTA will improve air quality by promoting COTA as an
environmentally friendly way to travel and as a catalyst for responsible growth. The
downtown Arena Terminal, currently in design stages, will reduce ride time and allow
partnerships with additional employers, gaining even more new riders. COTA will
expand service and partnerships by building a transit terminal at Easton. And long range,
COTA will continue exploring the possibilities of, and laying the groundwork for rail
service in Central Ohio. This additional transit service will give more customers an
alternative to sitting in traffic.

3. Safety — Informing the public that COTA is a safe form of transportation. COTA plans to

improve driver training and monitoring programs, update security plans, and expand
relationships with area law enforcement agencies and private sector security staffs.

(continued)
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Social/Mobility — Respond to the needs of a diverse community by expanding service for
the aging, economically and physically challenged, and disadvantaged citizens. One way
to do this is to make any necessary changes to COTA’s vehicles, and work with
murnicipalities to improve sidewalks and curbs — all to ensure everyone can get on and off’
buses safely. Yet another way we plan to improve access to the community is by
implementing a mobility management program to educate people about transit options
{and provide or broker multiple forms of transit) for getting people to0 work or other
important destinations.

Political/Legislative — Influence the creation of transit-friendly development policies,
funding, and laws at all levels of government. COTA strives to become the coordinator
of all transportation services in the region. In addition, COTA will pursue an increased
share of city, state, and federal money to fund major capital improvements such as
additional buses, use of technology, transfer locations, and service.

Technology — Continued use of technology to enhance operations and safety, and to
communicate with customers. COTA will expand its Internet presence, up-grade the bus
tracking and communication system, and continue to improve data systems. COTA sees
technology as a key component of reliable, efficient transit service.

Organizational/Cultural — Establish COTA as an organization with high-performing
employees who focus on serving customers. As do many progressive, private-sector
companies, COTA plans to reward employees based on initiative and performance.
Additionally, COTA will develop staff training based on analysis of staff skills. And
finally, COTA will develop a recruiting plan designed specifically to fill the new
positions that will be created as COTA grows.

The accomplishments of 1999 and the development of these seven strategic goals position COTA for
even greater success as we move into the 21* century. COTA is committed to using its resources
wisely to provide Central Ohio residents the mobility they’ll need to meet the challenges and
opportunities of the next millennium.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Internal Control Structure

The management of the Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control
structure designed to ensure that the Authority's assets are protected from loss, theft or misuse.
Management's responsibility is also to ensure that accurate accounting data is compiled to allow for
the preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

(continued )
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In developing and evaluating the Authority's accounting system, emphasts is placed on the adequacy
of internal controls. Internal accounting controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance regarding the protection of assets against loss from unauthorized use or
disposition, and the reliability of financial records used to prepare financial statements. The concept
of "reasonable assurance” recognizes that the cost of the control should not exceed the benefits likely
to be derived, and that the evaluation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by
management.

All internal control evaluations occur within the above framework. Management believes that the
Authority's internal accounting controls adequately safeguard assets and provide reasonable
assurance of proper recording of financial transactions. Management also believes that the data in
this CAFR, as presented, is accurate in all material respects, that it presents fairly the financial
position, results of operations and cash flows of the Authority, and that all disclosures necessary to
enable the reader to gain the maximum understanding of the Authority's financial affairs have been
included.

Basis of Accounting

The Authority's financial records are maintained on the accrual basis of accounting. The activities
are accounted for in a single enterprise (proprietary-type) fund.

Budgetary Controls

The annual accrual basis operating and capital budgets are proposed by the Authority's management
and adopted by the Board of Trustees in a public meeting, usually held in the month preceding a new
fiscal year. The annual budget is prepared using overall guidelines established after consideration of
the Authority's long-range financial plan. This plan, updated annually, projects revenue sources over
the next ten years and establishes service levels and growth commensurate with such revenue limits.

Management control for the budget is maintained by not permitting total expenditures to exceed

total appropriations without approval of the Board of Trustees. It is the responsibility of each
department to administer its operations in such a manner as to ensure that the use of funds is
consistent with the goals and programs authorized by the Board of Trustees.

{(continued)
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Financial Results - Revenues
The Authority's revenues are classified by source and described as shown below:

REVENUES BY SOURCE

(Thousands of Dollars)
Increase / (Decrease)
1999 1998 Amount Percent
Sales Tax Revenues $39,701 $36,043 $3,658 10.1%
Passenger Fares 13,201 13,135 66 1.0
Federal Assistance 9,727 1,920 7,807 406.6
State Assistance 3,342 3,655 (313) (8.6)
Investment Income 1,528 1,686 (158) (9.4)
Other Revenues:
Auxiliary Transportation Revenue 983 939 44 4.7
Planning Study Assistance 30 55 (25) (45.4)
Experience Refund from Bureau
of Workers’ Compensation 0 2,022 (2,022) (100.0)
Non-transportation Revenue 142 185 (43) (23.2)
TOTAL $68,654 $59,640 $9.014 15.1%

Sales Tax Revenues are received from a countywide, 1/4% sales tax levy approved by voters in
November 1989, and which expired on February 1, 2000. (A permanent 4% sales tax levy was
approved by voters on November 2, 1999.) The increase in 1999 revenues is due to continued strong
growth in the local economy. Moderate 6% growth is anticipated to continue in 2000.

Passenger Fares are comprised of farebox revenues, special transit fares and charter revenues. The
increase from 1998 amounts refiects our adding additional fixed route service and in increase in
vehicle hours and vehicle miles.

Federal Assistance is received from the FTA for general operating expenses and capital programs.
With the passage of the Transportation Equity Act of the 21 Century (TEA-21), regional transit
authorities were given the latitude to use their Section 5307 Federal Formula Assistance on the
capitalization of maintenance. As a result, virtually all of the Section 5307 funds are targeted to
vehicle maintenance, permitting the full use of this allocation each year, and freeing local funds for
future capital projects.

State Assistance is received from ODOT for general operating expenses, for elderly and disabled
rider reduced-fare subsidies and for reimbursement of State fuel taxes.

(continued)
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Investment Income is earned on invested funds. The decrease in income is due to reduced cash
balances pending receipt of $9.7 in Federal funds.

Experience Refund from the Bureau of Workers’ Compensation in 1998 was a one-time
retroactive service credit.

Other Revenues consist of auxiliary transportation revenues, planning study assistance and non-
transportation revenues. Auxiliary transportation revenue represents fees collected for advertising
placed on buses and increased due to the Authority selling more advertising contracts. Planning
study assistance received from the FTA in 1999 covered 80% of the costs incurred by the Mid-Ohio
Regional Planning Commission (MORPC) relating to "Livable Communities” project planning.
Nontransportation revenues include all other various miscellaneous income items.

On page 14 is a graph depicting sources of revenue as a percent of total revenues for the fiscal years
ended December 31, 1999 and 1998.

Financial Results - Expenses (Excluding Depreciation)

The Authority’s expenses, excluding depreciation, are classified by object class as shown below. The
Authority's major investment is in its employees as shown by the percentage expended for labor and
fringe benefits.

EXPENSES BY OBJECT CLASS
(Excluding Depreciation)

(Thousands of Dollars)
Increase/(Decrease)
1999 1998 Amount Percent
Labor $28,518 $26,551 $1,967 7.4%
Fringe Benefits 14,233 12,790 1,443 11.3
Materials and Supplies 4,311 3,855 456 11.8
Purchased Transportation 3,268 3,023 245 8.1
Services 5,003 2,913 2,090 71.7
Other Expenses:
Utilities 970 892 78 8.7
Taxes 635 594 41 6.9
Interest Expense 140 221 (81) (36.7)
Leases and Rentals 132 151 (19) {12.6)
Claims and Insurance 224 99 125 (126.3)
Planning Study Expense 37 69 (32) (46.4)
Miscellaneous 1,392 1,275 iz 9.2
TOTAL $58,863 $52,433 $6.,430 12.3%
{continued )

12



LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL

Labor comprises nearly half of total Authority expenses and includes hourly wages paid to union-
represented employees (bus operators, mechanics and facility maintenance personnel}, and salaries
and wages paid to administrative staff (clerical, supervisory and management perspnnel). In 1999,
the Authority's union contract granted a 3% hourly wage rate increase to all represented employees.
Merit raises for administrative staff averaged 3.6% in 1999. Additional staff were also added to
accommodate expanded service.

Fringe Benefits consist primarily of vacation, sick and holiday pay; required Authority contributions
to the Public Employees Retirement System of Ohio (at the statutory rate of 13.55% of total gross
taxable wages plus an additional 1.5% "pickup" of represented employees' contributions), and
employee medical benefits. The increase from 1998 is due to the %% increase in PERS pickup,
rising medical costs, and increased staffing. )

Materials and Supplies also include the Authority's diesel fuel expense. The two primary factors
for the increase of 11.8% are rising fuel prices and an increase in the purchase of bus repair parts due
to the Authority’s increased vehicle miles, vehicle hours and aging bus fleet.

Purchased Transportation expense is comprised of amounts paid to a private local contractor to
provide the Authority's Project Mainstream service (door-to-door, service-on-demand in wheelchair
lift-equipped minibuses for disabled riders). The 1999 increase was driven by a slightly higher
average per-service-hour rate included in the second year of a five-year contract, and an increase in
the number of service hours.

Services are provided by outside contractors to the Authority for a wide variety of professional,
technical, consulting and maintenance needs. The increase for 1999 is due to the purchase of
professional consulting services for Year 2000 (Y2K)} issues, system enhancements, and
administrative support.

Other Expenses consist of utilities, taxes, interest, leases and rentals, planning study, claims and
insurance and miscellaneous expense. Taxes are paid to the State on diesel fuel consumption at the
rate of $0.22 per gallon and real estate taxes are paid on non-exempt Authority property. Diesel fuel
tax increased over 1998 because of increased fuel usage. Interest expense declined in 1999 as bond
principal was paid. Leases and rentals are paid on the downtown Customer Service Center office,
certain park-and-ride facilities, and miscellancous equipment and decreased in 1999 because of
lower maintenance costs required by several lease agreements. Claims and insurance expense
decreased due to favorable claim with our self-insurance program. Planning study expense relates to
"Livable Communities" project planning activities by MORPC, which concluded in 1999. The
majority of the increase in miscellaneous expense for 1999 was due to an increase in advertising and
promotion campaigns.

{continued)
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Revenues by Source
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Expenses by Object Class
(Excluding Depreciation)
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On page 15 is a graph depicting of expenses, excluding depreciation, by object class as a percent of
the total for the fiscal years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998.

The Authority's expenses, excluding depreciation, can also be classified by functional category and
described as shown below:

EXPENSES BY FUNCTION
(Excluding Depreciation)

{(Thousands of Dollars)
Increase/(Decrease)
1999 1998 Amount Pexcent
Transportation $32,160 $29,868 2,292 21%
Vehicle Maintenance 9,510 9,171 (339) (3.7)
Facilities Maintenance 4 548 4,089 (459) (11.2)
General and Administrative 12.645 9,305 3,340 35.9
TOTAL $58,863 $52,433 6,430 12.3%

Transportation expenses are those direct costs incurred in operating the Authority's bus vehicles
and para-transit minibuses {Project Mainstream) and include wages, salaries and fringe benefits for
bus operators, supervisors, bus scheduling and fare collection personnel; diesel fuel and related state
fuel taxes: bus system security services; and transportation services purchased from private
contractors.

Vehicle Maintenance expenses include wages, salaries and fringe benefits for maintenance
personnel and supervisors, and related materials and supplies consumed in the maintenance of all
buses and service vehicles.

Facilities Maintenance expenses include wages, salaries and fringe benefits for maintenance and
janitorial personnel and supervisors, and materials and supplies required for the upkeep of the
Authority's three main facilities, two terminals, 27 park-and-ride lots and 345 bus stop passenger
shelter locations.

General and Administrative expenses consist of administrative personnel salaries and fringe
benefits, utilities, public liability and property damage claims, contracted professional services,
leases and rentals, interest expense, planning study expense, and miscellaneous expenses required to
support all operational activities.

In general, fluctuations are consistent with those noted at the object level.

(continued )
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Financial Results - Retained Earnings

The Authority's revenues in excess of net expenses (including depreciation) for the year ended
December 31, 1999, were $1,539,126. After adjusting for depreciation on assets acquired with
federal grants, the net increase in retained earnings was $7.9 million (from $40.8 million to $48.7
million).

Retirement Plans

Full-time, permanent employees (current or retired} of the Authority are covered under the Public
Employees Retirement System of Ohio (PERS), a statewide public retirement (including disability
retirement) system.

Employees covered by PERS contribute at a statutory rate of 8.5% of earnable salary or
compensation, and the Authority contributes 13.55% of the same base. By contractual agreement,
the Authority also pays 1.5% of the represented employees' required contribution. These
contribution rates are actuarially determined and statutorily mandated.

The Authority has a "pickup" (assume and pay) program with respect to all of the statutorily required
contributions of the employees covered by PERS. These "pickups” defer the employees' federal and
state income taxes on those contributions at no extra cost to the Authority.

PERS is not subject to the funding and vesting requirements of the federal Employee Retirement
Income Security Act of 1974.

PERS was created by, and operates pursuant to, the Ohio Revised Code. The Ohio General
Assembly could decide to amend the format of PERS and could revise rates or methods of
contributions to be made by the Authority into the pension fund and revise benefits or benefit levels.

Federal law requires Authority employees hired after March 31, 1986 to participate in the federal
Medicare program, which requires matching employer and employee contributions, each being
1.45% of taxable wages. Otherwise, Authority employees are not currently covered under the federal
Social Security Act.

Debt Administration

The Authority sold unvoted, tax-exempt, general obligation bonds in 1990 to finance the purchase
and construction of various capital assets. Payment of debt service on the bonds of the Authority is
secured by a pledge of all revenues of the Authority, except those specifically limited to another use
or prohibited from that use by the Ohio Constitution, state or federal law, or any revenue bond trust
agreement into which the Authority might enter. Management intends for debt service to be paid
from the receipts of the Authority's sales and use tax. The debt service is also payable, in the event it

(continued )
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is not paid from other sources, from ad valorem taxes that could be imposed by the Authority, within
the ten-mill limitation set by Ohio law, The Authority has $1.36 million of bonds outstanding as of
December 31, 1999, which mature as follows:

Principal Interest
Year Amount Rate
2000 1,360,000 6.625%

Only capital projects are eligible for debt financing under the Ohio Revised Code. Management
believes that existing cash and investment balances and projected cash flows of the Authority are
more than adequate to cover existing debt service requirements and future operating costs. As of
December 31, 1999, the maximum annual debt service charges permitted by law for new, unvoted
debt issuance was $19.6 million. However, the Authority currently intends to fund capital
improvements through federal grants, state grants and local sales tax revenues.

Cash Management and Investments

The Authority utilizes a cash management and investment policy intended to maximize financial
return while minimizing risk ofloss. Cash balances are invested at the best interest rates available in
the money markets within the constraints imposed by the investment policy of the Authority and the
Ohio Revised Code. In accordance with these provisions, only banks located in Ohio and domestic
building and loan associations are eligible to hold public deposits. These provisions also permit the
Authority to invest its monies in certificates of deposit, savings accounts, money market accounts,
the state treasurer's investment pool (STAR OHIO), obligations of the United States government or
certain agencies thereof. The Authority may also enter into repurchase agreements with any eligible
depository for a period not exceeding thirty days. Otherwise, investments in "derivatives" are
tforbidden.

As defined by the criteria developed by the Government Accounting Standards Board, most of the
Authority's deposits are either uncollateralized, or are collateralized by securities held by the
pledging financial institutions' trust department or agent (but not in the Authority's name). The
Authority's deposits are, however, secured in compliance with the Ohio Revised Code. Because the
Authority's deposits are held by large, financially sound banks, management believes that the security
supporting the Authority's deposits is adequate.

Effective January 1, 1998, the Authority adopted GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Certain investments and External Investment Pools. Pursuant to Statement
No. 31, at December 31, 1999, investments are carried at fair value, which is based on quoted market
prices. Any unrealized gains or losses are recognized as adjustments to investment income. The
Authority’s policy is to hold investment securities to their scheduled maturity date.

(continued )
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Risk Management

The Authority is self-insured for public liability and property damage claims. Claims are normally
paid with the operating revenues of the Authority. The Authority, by resolution of the Board of
Trustees, restricted assets in fiscal year 1987 to accumulate funds to satisfy catastrophic or
extraordinary losses. The restricted assets as of December 31, 1999 were approximately $11.4
million.

The Authority is under contract with an insurance carrier who provides fully-insured group coverage
for employee general health and hospitalization benefits. Blanket insurance coverage is maintained
for property and equipment. In addition, the Authority has insurance to protect against internal
losses.

Prior to June 30, 1998, COTA was insured through the State of Ohio Bureau of Workers’
Compensation (BWC) for injuries to its employees. On July 1, 1998, the Authority entered into an
agreement with the BWC to become self-insured for claims pertaining to work-related injuries to
Authority employees occurring on or after that date. The BWC agreed to continue to administer and
pay all comnpensation claims arising on or before June 30, 1998. The estimated liability for all such
claims occurring since July 1, 1998 is $250,000 at December 31, 1999, and is included as a liability
in the accompanying balance sheet.

OTHER INFORMATION
Independent Audit

The Authority's independent certified public accounting firm of KPMG LLP has rendered an
unqualified audit report on the Authority's financial statements for the fiscal year ended December
31, 1999. This report is included in the financial section of this CAFR.

The Authority also participates in the federal single audit program, which consists of a single audit of
all federally funded programs administered by the Authority. As a requirement for continued
funding eligibility, participation in the singie audit program is mandatory for most local
governments, including the Authority. The single audit performed by KPMG LLP met the
requirements set forth by the State of Ohio and the federal Single Audit Act of 1984 (including the
Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996) and related Office of Management and Budget Circular A-
133 (Revised).

It is the intention of the Authority's management to submit this and future CAFRs for review under
the GFOA's "Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting" program.
Management believes the current report conforms to the program requirements, and expects that
participation will result in continued improvement in the Authority's financial reporting future years.

{continued)
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Mary T. (Tommie) Williams
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William A. Anthony, Jr.
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Janet G. Ashe
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Lou J. Briggs
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Compiliance Officer
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Carol E. Wise (effective 6-19-2000)
Emmett J. Crockett
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Barbara A, England
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Two Nationwide Plaza Telephone 614 249 2300
Columbus, OH 43215 Fax 614 249 2348

Independent Auditors’ Report

Board of Trustees
Central Ohio Transit Authority
Columbus, Ohio:

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of the Central Ohio Transit Authority (COTA)
as of December 31, 1999 and 1998, and the related statements of revenues, expenses and changes
in retained earnings, and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the
responsibility of COTA’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audit in accordance with genecrally accepted auditing standards and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of COTA as of December 31, 1999 and 1998, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated June 1,
2000 on our consideration of COTA's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants,

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements taken as a
whole. The supplementary schedule listed in the table of contents is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements of COTA. The additional
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial

statements and, in our opmion, is fairly presented in all material respects in relation to the
financial statementis taken as a whole.

KPMe LLP

June 1, 2000
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CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Balance Sheets

December 31, 1999 and 1998

ASSETS 1999 1998
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents ... e, 3 774,986 3 1,632,511
Receivables:
Federal operating assistance.........oovvvivoreinrnennnnennnnnes 9,718,608 -
State operating assistance..............ccooovivinnnnnes 2,427,000 2,673,081
11T Ut 1,368,156 778,571
Inventory of materials and supplies rrereerea 1,625,782 1,449,447
L0 1T S U 138,413 453,637
- 1 16,052,945 6.987,247
RESTRICTED ASSETS:
Board restricted:
Cash and cash equivalents........ovvvvveveennnnns mrreervrrrannas 22,592,537 12,495,187
TV IS . oot viieiert s eeenceseruurrassasnnerrevmuseormmenes - 13,747,802
- Notas g0 T=ra 5 Bo) (=7 SR U - 302,756
Total.....ccceevrrervesrrreeereeeees 22592 537 26,545,745
Restricted for capital grants:
Cash and cash equivalents .....ccccovmerimsnrrveccceans - 3,746,319
Federal capital grants receivable ..o 4,111,166 821,269
State capital grants receivable. ... errenreninnev e 552,923 34,229
Total .o eeceeremrresemseerecemenasen 4,664,089 4,602,317
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:
COSE e eeiirrerermnmrrremmremrecesssessnsesenvmeeeeanan 143,390,287 127,400,057
Less accumulated depreciation......eveeeceeereerrcecrorececscamssererennenes (77,230,796) (69,273,915)
o] ) O, 66,159,491 58,126,142
TOTAL ASSETS...conncoocuee. $ 109,469,062 $ 96,261,451
See notes to financial statements.
(continued)
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CENTRAL OHIOQ TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Balance Sheets (continued)
December 31, 1999 and 1998

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY i 1999 1998
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Current portion of capital lease obligation ... osenerinnns 147,843 143,739
Accounts payable...co i oo iis o arr e e 2,833,904 1,239,005
Accrued payroll and fringe benefits.......coove e . 5,136,840 4,647,522
Accrued payroll taxes......coverne. S 620,709 1,315,365
Accrued interest payable. .. ...t 37,543 72,878
Estimated workers compensation claims.........cceveeevueniiiannn. 250,000 120,000
Other current liabilities.......... 286,164 370.126
Total.n i 9,313,003 7,908,635
LIABILITIES PAYABLE FROM RESTRICTED ASSETS:
Current portion of bonds payable .. cesssanens 1,360,000 1,280,000
Estimated claims payable .....cccoun.. 212,871 203,276
Capital expenses payable and other. ... v cenans 280,713 82,126
Total..cvecerrrrresrrnsr e eees 1,853,584 1,565,402
OTHER LIABILITIES:
Bonds payable, less current poTtion .......oeeiiirierirmssnesnnssssssnsann - 1,360,000
Deferred income - sale Of taX [€a5€S....ovviivvrsrisvmrssesescaressssannsnnes 19,273 32,121
Capital lease obligation, less current portion .....ueecocccevmnrccccencnen 302,733 158,272
51 | ST, 322,006 1,550.393
Total Habilities. ..c.cmerronsrmenne e amsmsr e msasmmanemsessssnsorssrnens 11,488,593 11,024,430
EQUITY:
Contributed capital:
Federal capital grants....ccuuwescrieremseeerinscsscervessassomsevesssencees 45,272,359 41,905,403
State capital grants.....ueevconeccsrcssene 3,012,158 2,506,517
Donated capital. ... .ccoveii i ia v e - 942,000 -
o3 S— 49,226,517 44,411,920
Retained SarningS ..o cecerrrcerrererrasserrmssnceseremesrman s s eeessomranmans 48,753,952 40,825,101
TOLRE EQUILY. . vvveevmeeerereasesssressocesossesmsssns s ssrannssessessmasecaroses 97,980,469 85,237,021
TOTAL LIABILITIES ANDEQUITY ..o, 109,469,062 96,261,451

See notes to financial statements.
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CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Equity

Years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998

1699 1998
OPERATING REVENUES:
Passenger fares fOr transit SEIVICE ..o ememrericsrerssvmsmr s sessssas s esssncors 9 12,795,123 12,679,572
Special transit fares....c.oiviiiimrasisrssmsm .- 384,650 431,504
Charter SErVICE TBVEAIIUL. .ot eeeeeceeaeeeremeamrmns st csssesnssassnevrnns 21,507 24,406
Auxiliary transportation TEVENUE. .. s issresisrssiessss e ssessn: 983,160 939,054
TOlc.verierresinirer e sres s sassnnsin sy s s e n s sy ey oms e e s 14,184,440 14,074,536
QPERATING EXPENSES OTHER THAN DEPRECIATION:
Labor......... 28,518,217 26,551,118
Fringe benefits....coovvvimnvnvccnin e - 14,232,678 12,790,407
Materials and sUPPHES....orvvvriceeicnremsenns 4,310,930 3,854,570
Purchased HanSPOTIALION. cavwiri s crsisssarssrenssrinressrssnssesenasssrsne. 3,267,644 3,023,008
SEIVICES . nernrererrsrer e sesnssressessrrarearen eveesaranense 5,003,091 2,913,181
HHHES et sesis s s s v s s s sn s e avens eeereesemmenen 970,031 892,157
Taxes... e ererinseeaerienreaeteseeate ST aT e A Taa e e e et St s < 635,113 593,828
Leases and rentais ........................................................... wrnsrarasapeinees 132,498 151,265
Claims and insurance, net of settlements 224,176 08,845
MiscellanBous. ..o vrmverese s 1,391,509 1,275,328
Total..cvveeeerareerreeneerrneos 58,685,887 52,143,707
DEPRECIATION:
On assets acquired with contributed capital......ociiiciiininin, 6,389,725 6,398,665
On assets acquired with Aothority reSOUNCES....ucesrimmemcesceenmeenes 1,862,157 1,351,168
o2 1 8,251,882 7,749,833
Total OPerating EXPENSES. .cvuicrivisinrsiarissssssssssssrasrrrismmemrems o - 66,937,769 59,893,540
EXCESS OF OPERATING EXPENSES INCLUDING
DEPRECIATION OVER OPERATING REVENUES......coierennn (52,753,329) (45,819,004)
NONQOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Sales taX revVenUeS. ..o v eree e cece e o S 39,700,653 36,042,732
Federal operating grants and re1mburscments ................................... 9,726,749 1,919,920
State operating grants, reimbursements and
special fare assistance ......coweinienseen 3,341,855 3,655,120
Interest income... e err e ————— gt 1,527,817 1,685,714
Interest cxpcnsc ivesrresrarateaeTeaLASinsnrRAseseasmmamasnsAnArEmnrmennra, (139,565) (221,275
Planning study assiStance TeVENUES......ciueresrartiainsinssssmannesas e seennss 29,833 54,860
Planning study expense... rrretreere e e s (37,291} {68,575)
Experience refund from thc Ohm Bureau
of Workers COmMPENSAtioN........civimiininiiiss s s cia e raaarans - 2,022,040
Nontransportation and Other reVenue. ... ..o vine oo veeeies 142,404 184,955
TOAL e reeeermnrrmessarsmressressnssrarss 54,292,455 45,275,491
NET REVENUES OVER / (UNDER) EXPENSE
(carried forward 1o next page).....coviioiisinnnnenn, . 1,539,126 (543,513)
See notes to financial statements.
(continued)




CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Equity (continued)

Years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998

NET REVENUES OVER / (UNDER) EXPENSE

(brought forvard from previous page).........oeeveenrconenesnicesenenns

Addback of depreciation expense {(on assets acquired with

contributed capital) closed to contributed capital........cooo e vreverrcnnne

INCREASE IN RETAINED EARNINGS....

RETAINED EARNINGS, BEGINNING OF YEAR.....coooveeccevrrmsrveneons

RETAINED EARNINGS, END OF YEAR......cr..-.

CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL, BEGINNING OF YEAR ....cccvrvevcrmenrrrraeene

Capital contributed:
Federal capital grants..............

State capital grants.....coeeevescvrernenes

Donated capital. . ..covrmreeeieiee s srr s ereea e e sans

Amortization of contributed capital (equal to the depreciation
on assets acquired with contributed capital):
Federal capital grants......

State capital grants.....cocovciririreenar

CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL, END OF YEAR................

TOTAL EQUITY, END OF YEAR....corcccvririrccrrne

See notes to financial statements.

1999 1998
1,539,126 (543,513
6,389,725 6,398,665
7,928,851 5,835,152

40,825,101 34,969,949

48,753,952 40,825,101

44,411,920 47,464,262
9,386,291 3,312,094

876,031 34,229
942,000
(6,019,335) (6,044,770}
{370,390} (353,895)
49 226,517 44,411,920
07,980,469 85,237,021
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CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998

1999 1998

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Excess of operating expenses including deprectiation over
operating revenues., . TSV UURT RO URUFOROTIUUTOTUTUVIES. (52,753.329) §  (45.819.,004)
Adjustments to reconcxlc to et cash usr:d in operanng activities;
Depreciation expense... 8,251,882 7,749,833
Federal planning study assistance recewed .................................................. 24,403 51.864
Planning study eXpenditules. ... ... vseriis s e s s sssss s s st ssssms s assas asssssnns {31,860} (67,275}
Other NONOPErRLNE FEVETIUES, TIEL...c0oiti oot ern steveesbeeeseesastsrams s per e s s onss b e sas b it rara s 121,415 2,144,305
Change in assets and liabilities:
R TECETVABIES. .ot oottt et sirie oo seer e e s e menre s eres peerataena e enae s s 32 ma s 120 s bn (595,653) 411,705
L E ATt 0 O O PP U PR SORTY (176,335) 21,389
Other assets... bR YR e ar e LAASAR SRRk S AR ARS A SRR AAR SR ERRSS R e o 308,672 (4,677)
Accounts payable ettt Eht e bt LR RS At E bt 1At A 1P S et n s 1rs e e st ranenne 1,504,859 283,597
Accrued payroll and related taxes... (205,338} 396,149
Other curtent ]w.bllmes (83.962) 11,625
Estimated claims payable.. 139,595 86.833
Total AJUSHTIEILS.......eeuriiccemsicrerere s craersresmares seerospsmmamoss asins s amamrassmRE PSR AR TR R 222 9,347,718 11,085,353

Net cash used in operating aCtivities. ...c....ocverrevcemreceerre s s mssrsr e esees (43,405,611} {34,733.651)

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Sales 1axes received. i e s 39,700,653 36,042,732
Federal operating assistance reccwed UV b e et e 14,209 1,802,279
State operating and other assistance received... . 3,596,077 3.637.128
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activiles. ....oocvvirceevirmsrirmenns 43,310,939 41482139

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Federal capital grants received. ... s s s e g 6,101,824 2.825230

State capital Erants FECEIVEL....ou i estenss s esaes s saes s sromsssarssssassa ey rassRabsaRRR RS ERSRE 357337 -

Proceeds from disposals of fiXed assets........coiiiecciiincen st e - 6.129

Acquisition and construction of [xed as$els. ..o oo asmsnmssssnsssssmse s (E4. 750,276} T {4,122,083)

Repayment of bond principal.... (1.280,000) (1,200,000)

[nterest paid or bonds payable and capuai leases ......................................................... (174,900} (254.400)

Repayment of capital lease obligations.... (244,682) {207.453)
Net cash used in capitat and related f'nancmg ackivities,. (9.990,697) (2.952.577)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from maturities of INVESIMENES......oovviv i s s 13,665,000 8.000,000
Interest received frOM INMVESUMEILS....ccoov e e eee e creea e ass s eraerrsssrs s bassa s s nennts 1,913,375 1,608,381
Purchases of investments... et e oAb et A A v R b aeent e rR e g R e e et s - (4,002.118)
Net cash prov:ded by INVESTING ACUVIHES. .0veveviserer s s ersessreees e ems s reressas 15,578,375 5,599,263

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS. ... 5,493,006 9,395,174

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR. ..o 17,874,517 B.479.343

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR......cccononnmnninsnniscimminnns B 23,367,523 3 8 17.874517

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION:
Equipment acquired under capital lease agreements.........oooviieinineninee $ 300,600 5 280,000

See notes to financial statements.
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CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended December 31, 1999 and 1998

ORGANIZATION AND REPORTING ENTITY

Organization

The Central Ohio Transit Authority (COTA or the Authority) is an independent, special-purpose political
subdivision of the State of Ohio. The Authority was created on February 17, 1971, pursuant to Sections
306.30 through 306.53 of the Ohio Revised Code for the purpose of providing public transportation in
Central Ohio, primarily Franklin County and surrounding areas. The Authority commenced operations on
January 1, 1974. As a political subdivision, the Authority is distinct from, and is not an agency of, the
State of Ohio or any other local governmental unit.

Under Ohio law, the Authority is authorized to levy a sales and use tax for transit purposes, including both
capital improvement and operating expenses, in 0.25% increments up to a maximum rate of 1.5% if
approved by a majority of the electors residing within the territerial boundaries of the Authority. Sucha
sales and use tax is in addition to the sales and use taxes levied by the state of Ohio and Franklin County.
On November 2, 1999, the voters of Franklin County approved a permanent 0.25% sales and use tax.

The Authority also has the power, under Section 306.40 of the Ohio Revised Code, to levy and collect
both voted (after approval at an election) and unvoted ad valorem taxes on all the taxable property within
the territorial boundaries of the Authority, in order to pay debt service on its bonds and notes issued in
anticipation thereof. Ad valorem taxes were not levied during fiscal years 1999 and 1998.

The Authority is governed by a thirteen-member Board of Trustees. Members are appointed by the mayors
of COTA's chartering municipal corporations and by the Franklin County Board of Commissioners and
serve overlapping three-year terms.

The Authority is not subject to federal or state income taxes.

Reporting Entity

The accompanying financial statements comply with the provisions of the Govemmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, This statement requires that
financial statements of the reporting entity include all of the organizations, activities, functions and
component units for which the reporting entity is financially accountable. Financial accountability is
defined as the appointment of a voting majority of the component unit's board and either (1) the reporting
entity's ability to impose its will over the component unit, or (2} the possibility that the component unit will
provide a financial benefit to or impose a financial burden on the reporting entity. COTA does not have
financial accountability over any entities.

The City of Columbus (the City) is a related orgagization to COTA as the Mayor of the City, with the
approval of City Council, appoints a voting majority of COTA's Board. However, the financial statements
of COTA are not included within the City's "Reporting Entity” as the City cannot impose its will and there
is no financial benefit or financial burden relationship between the City and COTA.

(continued)
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CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended December 31, 1999 and 1998

a.

b.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Accounting

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting, whereby
revenues and expenses are recognized in the period earned or incurred. All transactions are accounted for
in a single enterprise fund.

Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and Firancial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and
Other Governmental Entities that Use Proprietary Fund Accounting, the Authority follows GASB
guidance as applicable to proprietary funds and Financial Accounting Standards Board Statements and
Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board Opinions and Accounting Research Bulletins issued on or
before November 30, 1989 that do not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Authority considers all highly liquid investments
(including restricted assets) with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

Grants and Assistance

The federal government, through the Federal Transit Administration (FTA} and the Chio Department of
Transportation (ODOT), provide financial assistance and make grants directly to the Authority for
operations and the acquisition of property and equipment. Grants for operating assistance are recorded as
revenues during the entitlement period to which the grants apply.

Grants for the acquisition of property and equipment are credited to contributed capital as the related
qualified expenditures are incurred. Any grant cash received prior to the incurrence of related qualified
expenditures is deferred. Depreciation on fixed assets resulting from capital grants is ailocated to
contributed capital using the straight-line method over the same lives as described for the related property
and equipment in note 2(g).

Investments
Prior to January 1, 1998, investmenis were carried at cost and were adjusted for the amortizations of

premiums and accretion of discounts over the lives of the related securities, which were recognized as
adjustments to interest income.

(continued)
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CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended December 31, 1999 and 1998

€.

f.

Effective January 1, 1998, the Authority adopted GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Certain Investments and External Investment Pools. Pursuant to  Statement No. 31, at
December 31, 1998, investments are carried at fair value, which is based on quoted market prices. Any
unrealized gains or losses are recognized as adjustiments to investment income. The Authority’s policy is
to hold investment securities to their scheduled maturity date.

Inventorv of Materials and Supplies

Inventory items are stated at average cost. Inventory generally consists of maintenance parts and supplies
for transportation equipment.

Restricted Assets

Restricted assets consist of monies and other resources, which are restricted by the Authority’s Board of
Trustees or capital grants for specified purposes. These restrictions are described below:

Board Restricted Assets - These assets are restricted for the payment of claims under the Authority's
self-insurance program, for future capital expenditures and for the current portion of bonds payable.

Restricted for Capital Expenditures - These assets are restricted under the Authority's capital grants
for certain capital projects. The Authority also includes in restricted capital grant assets amounts

relating to its local share requirements for active capital grants.

Property and Depreciation

Property and equipment are stated at historical cost and include expenditures which substantially increase
the useful lives of existing assets. Routine maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the respective
assets, as follows:

Description Years
Land and leasehold improvements 5-20
Buildings and improvements 20-40
Revenue vehicles 12
Transit shelters and terminals 5-40
Other equipment 3-10

Assets acquired with capital grants are included in property and equipment. Depreciation on those assets
is included in the statements of revenues and expenses.

(continued)
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CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended December 31, 1999 and 1998

h. Estimated Claims Pavable

The Authority has a self-insurance program for public liability, personal injury, property damage and, as of
July I, 1998, workers’ compensation (see note @). Claims are accrued in the year the expenses are
incurred, based upon estimates of the claim liabilities made by management and the legal counsel of the
Authority. Also provided for are estimates of claims incurred during the year but not yet reported. These
estimates are based on past experience and current outstanding claims. An actuary was not used in the
determination of these liabilities.

i. Sale of Tax Leases

Cash received from the sale of tax leases has been deferred and is recognized as income on the straight-line
basis over the lives of the related assets. To take advantage of certain tax benefits available under Section
[68(F)(8) of the Internal Revenue Code, prior 10 December 31, 1987, the Authority entered into four sale-
and-leaseback agreements with third parties. These third parties purchased the rights to the local share
portion of certain buses from COTA for cash consideration and are leasing the buses back to the Authority.
Three such agreements expired in 1996, 1997 and 1998. The other leaseback agreement expires in 2001.

j- Compensated Absences

The Authority accrues vacation and sick pay benefits as earned by its employees.

k. Passenger Fares

Passenger fares are recorded as revenue at the time services are performed and revenues pass through the
farebox.

1. Budgetary Accounting and Control

The Authority's annual budget is prepared on the accrual basis of accounting as permitted by law. The
Authority maintains budgetary control by not permitting total expenditures to exceed total appropriations
without approval of the Board of Trustees.

m. Use of Estimates

The accounting and reporting policies of COTA conform to generally accepted accounting principles
{GAAP). The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

(continued)
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CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended December 31, 1999 and 1998

n.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement Nos. 33 and 34

This report does not incorporate GASB Statement Nos. 33 and 34, Recipient Reporting for Certain Shared
Nonexchange Revenues and Basic Financial Statements and Management Discussion and Analysis for
State and Local Governments, respectively. The Authority will adopt and implement these GASB
Statements at the required time. The Authority has not completed the process of evaluating the impact of
adopting these statements, and there is unable to disclose the impact that adopting these statements will
have on its financial position and results of operations when such statements are implemented.

CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The investment and deposit of Authority monies is governed by the provisions of the Ohio Revised Code.
In accordance with these statutes, only financial institutions located in Ohio are eligible to hold public
deposits. The statutes also permit the Authority to invest its monies in certificates of deposit, savings
accounts, money market accounts, the State Treasurer's investment pool (STAROhio) and obligations of
the United States government or certain agencies thereof. The Authority may also enter into repurchase
agreements with any eligible depository for a period not exceeding 30 days.

STAROhio is an investment pool managed by the State Treasurer’s Office, which allows govenments
within the State to pool their funds for investment purposes. STAROhio is not registered with the
Securities Exchange Commission as an investment company, but does operate in a manner similar to Rule
2a7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940. Investments in STAROhio are valued at STAROio s share
price, which is the price the investment could be sold for on December 31, 1999.

Public depositories must give security for all public funds on deposit. These institutions may either
specifically collateralize individual accounts in addition to amounts insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FDIC), or may pledge a pool of government securities valued at least at 110% of
the total value of public monies on deposit at the institution. Repurchase agreements must be secured by
the specific government securities upon which the repurchase agreements are based. These securities must
be obligations of, or guaranteed by, the United States government, and mature or be redeemable within
five years of the date of the related repurchase agreement. State law does not require security for public
deposits and investments 10 be maintained in the Authority's name.

During 1999 and 1998, the Authority complied with the provisions of these statutes.

a. Deposits With Financial Institutions

At December 31, 1999, the carrying amount of the Authority's deposits with financial institutions was
$45,144 and the bank balance was $109,050. In addition, the Authority had $6,130 of cash on hand.
The bank balance of $109,050 was insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (Category 1
as defined by the Government Accounting Standards Board).

{continued)
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CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
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b.

At December 31, 1998 the carrying amount of the Authority's deposits with financial institutions was
$1.,046,517 and the bank balance was $1,059,407. In addition, the Authority had $6,200 of cash on
hand. $200.000 of the bank balance was insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
(Category | as defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board). The remaining bank
balance cash deposits were uninsured and uncollateralized and were held in the name of COTA's
pledging financial institution, as required by the Ohio Revised Code (Category 3).

Investments and Other Deposits

The Authority's investments are detailed below and categorized in accordance with the criteria
established by the GASB to give an indication of the level of risk assumed as of December 31, 1999
and 1998. Category | includes investments that are insured or registered or for which the securities
are held by the Authority or its agent in the Authority's name. Category 2 includes investments that
are uninsured and unregistered for which the securities are held by the counterparty's trust department
or agent in the Authority's name. Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for
which securities are held by the counterparty or by its trust department or agent but not in the
Authority's name. Deposits and equities in pools of funds managed by other governmental uaits are
not categorized.

As of December 31, 1999, the Authority held equity of $23,316,249 in STAROhio, which is not
required to be categorized due to its nature,

Investments held as of December 31, 1998:

Fair/
--------------- Category———wevmuumnmn Carrying
Description 1 2 3 Value
U.S. Treasury notes and federal '
agency obligations s - - 13,747,802 '§5 13,747,802
Equity in the state treasurer's )
investment pool (STAROio) 16,821,800
Total investments and other deposits $ 30,569,602

(continued)
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4, BOARD RESTRICTED ASSETS

Board restricted assets are comprised of the following:

December 31,
1999 1998
Restricted for self-insurance:
Cash and cash equivalents g 11,411,946 $ 1,054,596
Investments - 9,720,927
Accrued interest - 250,222
Total 11,411,946 11,065,745
Restricted for capital expenditures:
Cash and cash equivalents 9,820,591 10,160,591
[nvestments - 4,026,875
Accrued interest - 12,534
Total _ 9,820,591 14,200,000
Restricted for bond retirement:
Cash and cash equivalents 1,360,000 1,280,000
Total board restricted $ 22,592,537 $ 26,545,745
5. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
The cost of property and equipment is comprised of the following:
December 31,
1999 1998
Land $ 5,168,315 $ 4,190,514
Land and leasehold improvements 8,862,408 8,685,321
Buildings and improvements 27,730,695 27,200,087
Revenue vehicles 67,961,219 61,127,627
Transit shelters and terminals 6,509,746 6,399,050
Other equipment 24,894,029 19,596,464
Construction in progress 2,263,875 200,594
Total $143,390,287 $ 127,400,057

The construction in progress includes funds committed to the purchase of buses and transit vehicles funded

primarily through federal and state capital assistance.

(continued)
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6. LEASES

COTA leases certain property and office equipment under capital and operating leases. Future minimum

payments, by year, and in the aggregate, under these leases with initial or remaining terms of one year or
more, consisted of the following at December 31, 1999:

Commitments Under

Capital Operating
Lease Leases
2000 $ 173,258 $ 29,787
2001 173,258 27,871
2002 ' 149,343 15,838
2003 - 5,622
Total minimum lease payments $ 495,880 $ 79,118
Less amount representing interest (45,313)
Present value of minimum lease payments —_—
under capital lease § 450,576

The interest rate for the capital lease is approximately 6.6% at December 31, 1999. Rental expense for all
operating leases was approximately $132,500 in 1999 and $151,000 in 1998.

7. BONDS PAYABLE

Bonds payable consist of capital improvement bonds issued to acquire, construct, improve, replace, extend
and enlarge transit facilities within the territorial boundaries of the Authority. The bonds are general
obligations of the Authority and bear interest at a weighted average annual rate of approximately 6.6%.
The bonds are scheduled for retirement in 2000,

The annual requirements to pay principal and interest on the bonds outstanding at December 31, 1996 are

as follows:
Year Principal Interest Total
2000 $ 1,360.000 $ 90,100 $ 1.450,100

(continued)
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8. GRANTS, REIMBURSEMENTS AND SPECIAL FARE ASSISTANCE

Grants, reimbursements and special fare assistance included in the statements of revenues and expenses for
the years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998 consist of the following:

1999 1998
Federal:
FTA Operating Assistance $6,718,609 3 373,955
FTA. Reimbursement of Bus Overhaul Expenses 1,505,299
City of Newark - Pass Through Operating Assistance 8,140 40,666
Total $9,726,743 § 1,919,920
State: ‘
ODOT Operating Assistance $2,429,652  § 2,743,278
ODOT Elderly and Disabled Fare Assistance 291,096 307,276
ODOT Fuel Tax Reimbursement 586,710 553,869
ODOT "Paving-the-Way" Reimbursement 34,397 50,697
Total 3 3,341,855 $ 3,655,120

9. RISK MANAGEMENT

COTA is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft or destruction of assets, injuries to
employees and natural disasters.

COTA is self-insured for all public liability, personal injury and property damage ciaims. The estimated
liability for such claims of $212,871 at December 31, 1999 and $203,276 at December 31, 1998 are
included in liabilities payable from restricted assets in the accompanying balance sheets. At December 31,
1999 and 1998,511,411,946 and $11,065,745, respectively, has been restricted by the Board of Trustees
to fund the self-insurance program. Such amounts are included in board-restricted assets in the December
31, 1999 and 1998 balance sheets.

Prior to June 30, 1998, COTA was insured through the State of Ohio Bureau of Workers® Compensation
(BWC) for injuries to its employees. On July 1, 1998, the Authority entered into an agreement with the
BWC to become self-insured for claims pertaining to work-related injuries to Authority employees
occurring after that date. The BWC agreed to continue to administer and pay all compensation claims
arising on or before June 30, 1998. The estimated liability for all such claims occurring since July [, 1998
is $250,000 at December 31, 1999 and is included as a liability in the accompanying balance sheet.

The general claims liability was calculated by establishing reserves on a case by case basis after analysis by
in-house counsel and outside attorneys. The workers” compensation liability was determined by analyzing
claim lag information provided by COTA’s third party administrator. A swmmary of changes in self-
insurance claims liability for the years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998 follows:

(continued)
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Self-

General Insured

Liability Workers’

Insurance Compensation
Claims liability at December 31, 1997 $ 236,438 $ -
Incurred claims, net of favorable settlements 55,051 144,585
Claims paid (88,213) (24,585)
Claims liability at December 31, 1998 203,276 120,000
Incurred claims, net of favorable settlements 194,666 145,462
Claims paid (185,071) {15,462)
Claims liability at December 31, 1999 $ 212,871 N 250,000

10. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

a.

Plan Description

COTA contributes to the Public Employees Retirement System of Ohio (PERS), a cost-sharing,
multiple-employer public employee retirement system. PERS provides retirement and disability
benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries.
Chapter 145 of the Ohio Revised Code assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions
to the PERS Board of Trustees. PERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes the
financial statements and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing
to Public Employees Retirement System, 277 East Town Street, Columbus, Ohio, 43215 or by calling
(614) 466-2085 or }-800-222-PERS (7377).

Funding Policy

Plan members are required to contribute 8.5% of their annual covered salary and COTA is required to
contribute an actuarially determined rate. The current rate is 13.55% of annual covered payroll. The
contribution requirements of plan members and COTA are established by, and may be amended by,
the PERS Board of Trustees. COTA's contributions to PERS for the years ending December 31, 1999,
1998, and 1997 were approximately $4,400,000, $4,125,000, and $3,845,000, respectively, equal to
the required contributions for each year.

_ (continued)
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11.

a.

Other Post-employment Benefits

PERS also provides post-employment health care coverage to age and service retirees with ten or more
years of qualifying Ohio service credit and to primary survivor recipients of such retirants. The ORC
provides statutory authority for employer contributions to be used for the funding of post-employment
heaith care. COTA"s contributions actually made to fund post-employment benefits were $1 1,363,800
in 1999 and $1.279,000 in 1998. These contributions are included in the funding rate of 13.55%.

Other post-employment benefits (OPER) are financed through employver contributions and investment
eamings theron (i.e. pay as you go). The contributions allocated to retiree health care and Medicare,
along with investment income on allocated assets and periodic adjustments in health care provisions
are expected to be sufficient to sustain the program indefinitely.

Expenditures for OPEB for PERS as a whole during 1999 were $523,599,349. As of December 31,
1999 the unaudited estimated net assets available for future OPEB benefits were $9,870,285,641. The
number of benefit recipients eligible for OPEB at December 31, 1999 was 118,062,

During 1997, PERS adopted a new calculation method for determining employer contributions applied
to OPEB. Under the new method, effective January [, 1998 emplover contributions, equal to 4.2% of
member covered payroll, are used to fund health care expenses. Under the prior method, accrued
liabilities and normal costs rates were determined for retiree health care coverage.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Litigation

1t is the Authority's policy to act as self-insurer for certain insurable risks consisting primarily of public
liability and property damage. At December 31, 1999, COTA has been named in various public
liability and property damage claims and suits, some of which seek significant damages. The ultimate
outcome of the ¢claims and suits cannot be determined; however, it is the opinion of management that
any resulting lability to the Authority in excess of that provided for in the accompanying halance
sheet will not have a material adverse effect on the Authority's financial position.

Federal and State Grants

Under the terms of the Authority's various grants, periodic audits are required where certain costs
could be questioned as not being an eligible expenditure under the terms of the grants. At December
31, 1999, there were no material questioned costs that had not been resolved with appropriate federal
and state agencies. Questioned costs could still be identified during audits to be conducted in the
future. In the opinion of COTA management, no material grant expenditures will be disallowed.
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CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Supplemental Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Equity - Budget vs. Actual (Accrual Basis)

Year ended December 3_1 ,1_999

FAVORABLE /
(UNFAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL YARIANCE
OPERATING REVENUES . 514,154,525 514,184,440 A -
OPERATING EXPENSES OTHER THAN DEPRECIATION:
LBl rercreceeeemeeeceeecectasnsanens 33,911,988 28,518.217 5,393,771
Fringe benefits....cccovmmsrsrinss 10,032,358 14,232,678 (4,100,320)
Materials and supplies........... 4.918,571 4,310,930 607,641
Purchased ttansportation........creeeesesreeeieeieee. 3,300,043 3,267,644 32,399
SEIVICES, e erteeemrrcemrrmesesvssseses 5,116,780 5,003,091 113,689
UtiHtes ..o £,069,243 970,031 99,212
TaXES. uvevrmresrrresnsiresss 661,479 635,113 26,366
Leases and rentals.......cociovvvcivicmnrssnnnenssenns 169,134 132,498 36,636
Claims and insurance, net of settlements e R —— 232,046 224,176 7,870
Miscellaneous. . ..orerreeerereennnes . —._1481,073 1,391,509 89.564
[ OO, e 60,992,715 58,685,887 2,306,828
DEPRECIATION.......... 7,446,552 8,251,882 (805,330}
Total operating expenses 68,439,267 66,937.769 1.501.498
EXCESS OF OPERATING EXPENSES INCLUDING
DEPRECIATION OVER OPERATING REVENUES.....ccviim {54.284,742) (52,753,329) 1,501,498
NONOPERATING REVENUES {(EXPENSESY):
Sales tax revenues... reasversussese vareee 37.824.441 39,700,653 1.876,212
Federal operating grants and reimbursements ..........ococveceviivieinnes 9,728,319 9.726.749 (L.570)
State operating grants, reimbursements and 2,404,727 3,341,855 (62,872)
special fare assistance........
T T 0= T T o 1= 1.817.036 1.527.817 (289.219)
Interest eXPense.........ccoeeresesseesren {139,565) {139,565) -
Planning study assiStANCE FEVENUES. ..o i iicrsmsssssss s srssrsesmsanras 29,833 29,833 -
Planning StUdY EXPENSE....ccovvr v s sammmsssasreririnsrrmrosssmsarssrrorenrosseos {37,291} (37,291) -
Nontransportation and other FEVENUES. .o crrererrmsreomieme.. 1,990,284 142,404 ([,847.880)
Total.,ceeceieene 54.617,784 54,292,455 (325329}
NET REVENUES OVER EXPENSES....oe et 333.042 1,539,126 1,176,169
CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL: .
Federal grants earned 32759619 9,386,291 {23.373,328)
State grants eamed.... 2,195.290 876,031 (1,319,259)
Donated Capital. .. voveiereeseeces s s e —__12,106.570 942,000 o (11164570
Totalee e cesserensn 47,061.479 11,204,322 (35.857.157)
NET CHANGE IN EQUITY .....cccoenee e 47,394,521 12,743,448 {34,680,988)
TOTAL EQUITY, DECEMBER 31, 1998 v 116,923,602 85.237,021 -
TOTAL EQUITY, DECEMBER 3¥, I99%....c.cirscsmmscesssssiaiaens $164.318.123 597,980,469 §  (34,680.988)

See accompanying [ndependent Auditors' report.
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CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Revenues and Operating Assistance -
Comparison to Industry Trend Data

Last Ten Fiscal Years

TRANSPORTATION INDUSTRY )

QPERATING AND OTHER REVENUE QPERATING ASSISTANCE TOTAL
STATE & ALL
YEAR PASSENGER OTHER JOTAL LOCAL EEDERAL TOTAL REVENUES
1990 36.7 5.6 423 51.7 6.0 57.7 100.0
1991 36.5 4.6 41,1 531 5.8 58.9 100.0
1992 36.4 38 40.2 54.1 57 508 100.0
1993 36.8 4.4 41.2 53.2 5.6 58.8 100.0
1994 37.6 126 @ 50.2 ©447 (o] 5.1 40.8 100.0
1995 37.3 15.4 52.7 42.8 4.5 473 100.0
1996 3 37.6 15.5 53.1 44.0 29 46.9 100.0
1997 40.1 15.6 55.7 41.3 3.0 44.3 100.0
1998 40.8 15.2 56.0 40.1 3.9 44.0 100.0
[gq(} * E * ¥ E3 Ed *

CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY 4

OPERATING AND OTHER REVENUE _ OPERATING ASSISTANCE TOTAL
STATE & ALL
YEAR PASSENGER OTHER TOTAL LOCAL FEDERAL TOTAL ~ REVENUES
(5) M

1950 217 6.2 33.9 . 536 (81 12.5 66.1 LG0.0
1991 253 5.8 31.1 58.9 10.0 68.9 [00.0
1992 25.5 4.4 209 60.4 9.7 70.1 [60.0
1593 234 4.2 27.6 62.7 9.7 72.4 100.0
1994 21.6 3.9 .27.5 63.6 8.9 725 100.0
1995 21.1 4.9 26.0 66.3 7.7 74.0 100.0
1996 226 54 28.0 67.9 4.1 72.0 160.0
1997 223 4.6 26.9 66.9 6.2 73.1 130.0
1998 22.1 7.7 i 29.8 67.0 32 70.2 100.0
1999 18.7 3.9 22.6 63.2 14.2 77.4 100.0

* Infommnation not available

(1) Source: The Amencan Public Transit Association, 4PTA 1994 Transit Fact Book

{2) Beginmng in 1994, other local government subsidies such as bridge and tunnel tolls and non-transit parking lot fees
were reclassified from "local operating assisiance” to "other revenue"

{3) Preliminary estimarte subject to future revision

{4) Percentages are derived from the Authority's independently audited annual financial statements

(5

{6) Excludes experience refund from the Bureau of Workers' Compensation {BWC)

(7

Includes auxiliary transportation revenues, interest income, planning study assistance revenue, and nontransportation and other revenues

Includes local sales 1ax revenues, and state operating grants, resmbursements. and special fare assistance

(8) Includes recognition of $1.3 million in cumulative eftect of change in accounting principle
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CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY

Farebox Revenues vs. Operating Expenses
Last Ten Fiscal Years

$(in rmillions)

60

50
80 47.1

41.3

B

1890 1991 1992 1993 1994 1996 1997 1998 1999

Farebox revenues include passenger, special transit and charter revenuss; operating expenses exciude depreciation

[ @ Farebox Revenues B Operating Expenses |

CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY

Farebox Recovery Ratio
35.0% l.ast Ten Fiscal Years

"30.0% 282%  27.7%

25.4%
25.0% 4 =
20.0% -

22.5%

15.0% -
10.0% -
5.0% -

& L B B B B
1990 1951 1992 1983 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999

Recovery ratio is calculated as farebox revenues (as defined above) divided by operating expenses (as defined above)
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CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Operating Expenses - Comparison to Industry Trend Data

Last Ten F:iscal Years

TRANSPORTATION INDUSTRY 1)

LABOR MATERIALS CLAIMS PURCHASED TOTAL
AND AND AND TRANSPOR- OPERATING
YEAR  FRINGES SERVICES SUPPLIES UTILITIES INSURANCE TATION OTHER EXPENSES

1990 71.2 50 10.2 35 4.1 6.4 0.4 1000
1991 68.9 4.9 9.4 3.5 18 9.9 0.4) 100.0
1692 T1.4 5.4 9.1 36 33 9.6 (2.4) 100.D
1993 71.1 53 89 36 3.4 10.4 2.7 100.6
1994 70.7 4.7 8.9 3.6 34 10.9 (2.2) 100.0
1995 711 4.3 9.0 3.5 29 10.8 (2.1 100.0
1996 0 71.6 5.1 9.3 3.6 28 9.9 {2.3} 100.0
1997 722 5.6 9.4 37 2.7 2.1 (2.7 100.0
1998 71.7 6.0 9.4 3.5 2.4 10.1 3.1 100.0
1900 ¥ * ¥ *® * * * 5

CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY w4

LABOR MATERIALS CLAIMS  PURCHASED TOTAL
AND AND AND TRANSFOR- OPERATING

YEAR  FRINGES  SERVICES  SUPPLIES UTILITIES  INSURANCE  TATION  OTHER EXPENSES o,
1990 75.5 4.6 9.7 2.2 1.4 34 3.5 1060
1991 75.2 47 10.5 22 0.7 32 3.5 100.0
1992 75.6 4.9 10.3 21 - 3.5 3.6 100.0
1993 75.0 5.5 9.6 19 1.3 3.5 3.2 160.0
1994 762 5.6 8.4 20 0.7 1.8 3.3 100.0
1995 76.5 5.3 8.2 1.9 0.5 42 34 100.0
1996 76.6 4.7 8.0 2.3 (0.2) 5.2 3.4 100.0
1997 76.4 48 7.3 1.8 0.2 5.9 3.6 100.0
1998 754 5.6 7.4 1.7 0.2 5.8 3.9 100.0
1999 72.6 8.5 7.3 1.6 0.4 5.6 4.0 160.0

* knfonmation not available

(1) Source: The Amencan Public Transit Associanon, APTA 1999 Transit Fact Book

(2} Toal operating expenses exclude deprecianon

(3) Prelimmary estimate subject to tutare revision

{4) Percentages are denved from the Authority's independently audited anrual financial stalements
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CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Legal Debt Margin
December 31, 1999
(1n thousands)

CALCUEATION OF LEGAL OVERALL DEBT MARGIN:

Total assessed property valuation of Franklin County

{1999 tax year valuation) (1) .ccoirrrrasssns e e e eeraee $21,032,111
Multiplied by: Legal overall debt limitation (%6} ..., 5.00%
Equals: Total legal voted and unvoted debt hmitation ........cceeeveerneene 1,051,606
Less: Nonexempt general obligation debt (voted and unvoted) (2) ...... 1,360

Equals: Legal overall debt margin {maximum amount permitted for ne
voted and unvoted nonexempt general obligation debt issuaric 31,050,246

CALCULATION OF LEGAL UNVOTED DEBT MARGIEN:

Total assessed property valuation ot Franklin County

(1999 tax yvear valuation) (1) ... $21,032,111
Multiplied by: Legal unvoted debt himutation (%) ... 0.10%
Equals: Legal unvoted debt ImIation ........ccccooviinnei s 21,032

Less: Maximum aggregate amounts of principal and interest
payable 1n any one calendar year (2} .....coeee.ee. . 1,450

Equals: Legal unvoted debt margin (maxmmum annual debt service chi
permitied for new unvoted nonexempt general obligation deb 319,582

Sources:

(1) Frankhn County Auditor's Othce; geographical boundanes of Frankiin County and the Autl
are conterminous

(2) The Authonty's independently audited annual tinancial statements
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CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Ratio of General Bonded Debt to Assessed Value and
Net Bonded Debt per Capita
Last Ten Fiscal Years

RATIO OF
GENERAL BONDED DEBT TO  BONDED DEBT

P T e g e L e A L~ e e e s e o

1990 961,437 (v  $13,318,712,608 $8,000,000 0.06% $8.32
1991 976,872 (2 §$13,723,613,795 $8,000,000 0.06% $8.19
1992 988,783 @  $14,060,575,663 $7,990,000 0.06% 58.08
1993 1,001,354 (2 $15,374,617,834 $7,965,000 0.05% $7.95
1994 1,014,465 » $15,672,478,794 $7,025,000 0.04% $0.92
1995 1,027,599 ¢ $16,055,247,822 $6,030,000 0.04% $5.87
1996 1,042,001 2  $17,356,432,082 $4,970,000 0.03% $4.77
1997 1,056,654 2y $17,916,289,322 53,840,000 0.02% $3.03
1998 1,067,002 2 $18,607,708,184 $2,640,000 0.01% $2.47
1999 1,079,204 ) $21,032,111,000 $1,360,000 0.01% $1.26

Note: There was no bonded debt outstanding prior to 1990

Sources:
{1y U. 8. Department of Commerce - Bureau of the Census
{2) Mid-Ohioc Regional Planning Commission estimate for year ended

(3) Franklin County Auditor’s Office. Assessed property value is for Franklin County for the respective tax yea
geographical boundaries of Franklin County and the Authority are conterminous

(4} The Authority’s independently audited annual financial statement
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CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY

Long-Term Debt Coverage
Last Nine Fiscal Years

YEAR REVENUES a

1991
1992
1993
1994
1995
1996
1997
1998

1999

GROSS

$43,508,381
$44,674,825
545,263,387
$49,681,092
$51.051,391
151,720,105
£55,750,081
$59,639,877

$68,653,750

$39,098,130
541,084,415
541,967,604
$44,690,175
$46,226,053
$47,308.852
$50,174.869
$52,212,282

$£58,723,178

54,410,251
$3.590,410
$3,295,783
34,990,917
54,825,338
$4,411,253
$5,575.212
87,427,595

39,930,572

NET REVENLE
OVER EXPENSES DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS @)
AVAILABLE FOR
EXPENSES 2y DEBT SERVICE PRINCIPAL

$0

$10,000
$25,000
$940,000
$995,000
$1,060,000
51,130,000
31,200,000
51,280,000

DEBT
COVERAGE
INTEREST TOTAL RATIO
$528,666 $528,666 8.34
$528,666 $538,666 6.67
$528,087 $553,087 5.96
$526,650 $1,466,650 340
$464,610 $1,459,610 3.31
$398,940 $1,458,940 3.02
$328,980 $1,458,980 3.82
$254,400 31,454,400 5.11
$174,900 51,454,900 6.83

Note: There was no long-term debt outstanding, except for capital lease obligations, prior to 1990

Source: The Authority's independently audited financial statements

{1) Total revenues include all operating revenues, nonoperating revenues, and the cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principle

(2} Total expenses exclude depreciation and interest expense

{3) Excludes principal and interest paid on capital lease obligations
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CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Computation of Direct and Overlapping Debt

December 31, 1999
{in COO's)

GROSS GENERAL —APPLICABLE TO THE AUTHORITY--
PO HCAL SUBDIVISION OBLIGATION DEBT PEB‘ ENTAGE 1) DOLLAR AMOUNT
Central Ohio Transit Authority $ 1.360 (00.00 %4 1,360
Franklin County 175,504 100.00 175.904
Cities wholly within Frankiin County 55,446 160.00 55,446
Cittes with overlapping jurisdictions:

City of Columbus 1.269 876 98.16 1.246.510

City of Dublin 59,855 86.13 51.553

City of Pickeringion 9.035 0.68 6i

City of Reynoldsburg 19,085 78.99 15,075

City of Westerville 41,100 81.22 33,3381
Villages wholly within Franklin County 11,829 100.00 11,829
Village with overlapping jurisdiction:

Village of Canal Winchester 5,691 64.50 5378
Townships wholly within Franklin County 8.880 100.00 8,880
Township with vverlapping jurisdiction:

Washington Township 2,810 86.52 2431
Schuot Districts wholly within Franklin County 80.323 1G0.GG §0.323
School Districts with overlapping jurisdictions:

(Canal Winchester Local 19,341 76.19 14,736

Dublin City 128,355 86.56 111,104

Hilliard City 92,257 99.99 $2.248

Licking Heights Local 135 28.37 38

Madison Plains Loca) 100 3.18 3

Olentangy Local 60,107 0.13 78

Pickerington Local 27.520 1.87 515

Plain Local 15,425 99.99 19.423

Reynoldsburg City 20.207 80.43 16.252

South-Western City 162.224 99.77 168,851

Teays Vatley Local ) 680 G.10 1

Westerville City ) 43,050 76,43 32903

Delaware County Joint Vocational 530 0.07 0

Eastiand foint Vocational 60 66.30 438

Licking County Joint Yecational 1,110 2.08 23
Library with overlapping jurisdiction:

Delaware County District Library 2,895 0.08 2

TOTAL: § 1.137.748

Source: Franklin County Aunditor’s Office: primarily from debt schedules submitted by subdivistons to the Franklin County
Budget Commission and the Settlement Divigsion of the Frankln County Auditor's Office

(1) Percentages were determined by dividing the assessed valuation of the portion of the jurisdiction within Franklin County
by the total assessed valuation of the entire jursdiction. Geographical boundaries of Franklin County are conterminous
with those of the Authority Valuations used are the 1999 1ax year
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CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Fare Rate Structure
December 31, 1999

CASH OR TICKET FARES:
EXPress ..ooovcivcrssneserrersssnsnereesecrsrens - $ 150
Local and crosstown ..ue.cccvoveverrsrsereneececnnn i.10
Project Mainstream (1} .............. 1.50
COTA LINK (2) ceerevieeeiiiieeinens T 0.25
TIANSLEL v ccrssrere s e srs s e ersrrresssrrrrassae resaraveserensreres 0.10
DAY PASSES (3):
Adult (4) i - $ 250
Human Service Agency (5) .. 2.00
Children 7-12 years, Senior Dlscount Card (6)
Key Card (7) or ADA Card (8) weeeeeeeeeeeceevreeerneeenvrrnenes .25
MONTHLY PASSES: .
EXPIESS +oooenceeeteeeveesaesesteeeereeeeesesesssssssevvrmnseeemseensessassran $ 5000
LOCA] tertiiiiiiieessserrresere e cteessasssssssssssbnmmesemsseeesesssansnaras 37.00
Project Mainstream (1} .. 50.00
Senior Discount Card (6) Key Card (7)
or ADA Card (8) .ooovveivieeeeeeene 16.50

SPECIAL FARES:
Children 7-12 years. Senior Discount Card (7),

Key Card (7) or ADA Card (8) oo eereerreeeee $ 0.55
Children under 7 years .......coucecvmvveereccecoreeerecereveerrnssnnens FREE
S.COT. (9 e reetrrieseareente e e e rr—eeaaeanaaan rassrnnnes 2.20

(1} Door-to-door service on demand, in wheelchair lift-equipped paratransit mini-buses, for eligible
disabledriders holding an "ADA" card

(2) Midday shuttle-type service in downtown Columbus

(3} Good for one day of unlimited travel an all local/crosstown routes

{4) Additional $0.40 required for express service

{5) Distributed by approved nonprofit service agencies for use by their clientele

(6} Photo identification card, for riders aged 65 and over

(7) Photo identification card, for eligible disabled riders

{8) Photo identification card, for physically or mentally disabled riders eligible for Project Mainstream service
(9) Senior Citizens On the Town - roundtrip fare for special service 1o groups of thirty or more senior citizens
Source: COTA. How ro Ger On Jt. published by the Authority
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CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Demographic Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years

PER CAPITA MEDIAN K -12SCHOOIL UNEMPLOYMENT

YEAR POPULATION INCOME AGE ENROLLMENT RATE
(1 (3} ) (6 )]
1990 961,437 18,974 31.0 164,908 3.4%
1991 976,872 19,550 31.3 167,850 3.8%
1992 988,783 20,786 314 168,486 4.6%
1993 1,001,354 21,739 32.3 173,030 4.5%
1994 1,014,465 22,958 326 174,459 3.7%
1995 1,027,599 24,943 33.0 177,296 3.0%
1996 1,042,011 25,959 33.0 5 181,386 2.9%
1997 1,056,654 26,647 33.0 % 183,351 2.7%
1998 1,067,002 29,425 329 5 188,704 2.5%
1999 1,079,204 * * * *

Note: Al information presented is for Franklin County; geographical boundaries of Franklin County
are conterminous with those of the Authority

* Information not available

Sources:
{1y Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission estimate for the year ended
(2) U. S. Department of Commerce - Bureau of the Census
(3) U. S. Department of Comumerce - Bureau of Economic Analysis

{4) "Survey of Buying Power", special issue published annually by "Sales and Marketing Management
magazine

(5) "Sourcebook ot County Demographics”, 10th & 11th ed., published by CACI Marketing Systems,
Arlington, VA

(6) Ohio Department of Education - Division of Information Management Services

(7) Ohio Bureau of Employment Services
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CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Miscellaneous Statistics

As of, or for, the Year ended December 31, 1999

Date of creation ot Authority by local county
and municipal OVEIMINENtS ......ccveverrcrrrmeneorirns

Date ot'acquisition of assets of Columbus
Transit Company (C.T.C.) ciiiorineeerrenans

Date of commencement ot” Authority operations ...

Form of government ......ccoocccvimnrevrcceesemsermssrersenas

NUmMber OF TTUSEEES «..eoiieriimier et v e eeersiiesrsvseonmnae

County in which Authority operates ....ccccccvrrevrvrcee

Type of taX SUPPOIT cccveeiriererrneceeerercenrareersaennremneene

Size of Authority .....cooovevivviiinnnnns
Miles O TOULE cevericrnee e e s
INumber 0 TOULES ..o
Number ol ' bus stop locations ........ccovviviinnevenecn
Number ot bus stop passenger shelters .......occveiie
Number of Park-and-Ride facilities ...............ccoev.e.
Parking capacity, all Park-and-Ride tacilities ........

Number ot active fleet buses ....ccovvvvvrroreees

Average bus vehicle age ......
Average System Speed ..o e
Average system fuel ecOnomy ......ccccvveverrrcrrvrirnnee.

Number of customer information calls received ....

February 17, 1971

June 29, 1973
January 1, 1974

Board of Trustees, with
tulltime President/CEQO

13

Franklin County and small portions
of adjacent Delaware, Fairfield
and Licking Counties, Ohio

Franklin County Sales Tax - 1/4%
(permanent)

-..543 square miles

1,001

60

5,500

345

27

2,247 automobiles
321

4.0 years

14 muiles per hour
4.06 miles per gallon
1,010,000
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Administrative Offices

and Bus Facility
1600 McKinley Avenue
Columbus, Ohio 43222

(614) 275-5800

Light Maintenance
and Storage Facility

1333 Fields Avenue
Columbus, Ohio 43221

Customer Service Cenfer

117 South High Street
Columbus, Ohio 43215
(614) 228-1776



88 East Broad Street
STATE OF OHIO P.O. Box 1140

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR Columbus, Ohio 43216-1140

Telephone  614-466-4514
JiM PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE 800-282-0370

Facsimile 614-466-4490

CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY

FRANKLIN COUNTY

CLERK'S CERTIFICATION
This is a true and correct copy of the report which is required to be filed in the Office
of the Auditor of State pursuant to Section 117.26, Revised Code, and which is filed
in Columbus, Ohio.

desarn Poabbtt

CLERK OF THE BUREAU

CERTIFIED
OCTOBER 5, 2000
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